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November 22. 2011

To the Board of Education, Parents, Taxpayers, and Members of the Thompson School District
R2-J, Loveland and Berthoud, Colorado:

We are pleased to submit to you the Comprehensive Annual Financial Reporn {(CAFR) of Thompson
Schoo! Distnct R2-J for the year ended June 30, 2011.

State law requires that the District publish within six months of the close of each fiscal year a complete
set of financial statements presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of Amenca (US GAAP) and audited in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of Amenica (US GAAS), by a firm of licensed certified public accountants.
Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby issue the comprehensive annual financial report of the Thompson
Schoot District R2-J (Ihstrict) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the hnances of the District.
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the
information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations,
management of the District has established a comprehersive internal contro! framework that is designed
both to protect the Thsirict’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient rehiable
information for the presentation of the Dstrict’s financial statements in conformity with US GAAP.
Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the District’s comprehensive
framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance
that the financial statements will be free from matenal misstaternent. As management, we assert that, to
the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all matenal respects.

The District’s financial statements have been audited by Swanhorst & Company LLC, a firmn of licensed
certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that
the financial statements of the District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, are free of matenal
misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, cvidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimatcs made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendenng
an unqualified opinion that the District’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, are
fairly presented in conformity with US GAAP. The independent auditors’ report is presented as the first
component of the financial section of this report.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the District was part of a broader, federally mandated
“Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The standards governing
Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of
the financial statements, but also on the audited District’s internal controls aml compliance with legal
requiremnents, with special emphasis on intemal controls and legal requirements involving the
administration of federal awards. These reports are available in the District’s separately issued Single
Audit Report.

i
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US GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction
with it.

Profile of the Government

The District, reorganized in 1960, now comprised of 30 schools: five high schools, five middle schools,
and twenty elementary schools. Dunng 2006-07 the District added its’ first charter school and in 2011-12
has opened another. All of the schools are located in the City of Loveland, City of Fort Collins or the
Town of Berthoud in Northern Colorado. The geographic area of the District is 362 square miles located
mainly in southern Larimer County. Student enrollment has steadily increased over the past two decades;
but more recently has flattened; the Funded Pupil Count was 14,470 students for the 2010-11 school year.
The District’s Board of Education is empowered to levy a property tax on both real and personal
properties located within its boundaries.

The District 1s the reporting entity for financial reporting purposes and is not included in any other
governmental reporting entity. The financial statements of the Distnct include all funds that are
controlled by the publicly elected Board of Education. The Board of Education adopts the budget,
authorizes expenditures, selects the superintendent, significantly influences operations, and is primarily
accountable for fiscal matters.

The annual budget serves as the foundation of the District’s financial planning and control. The District
maintains extensive budgetary controls, to ensure compliance with legal requirements, Board of
Education policies and District administration guidelines. The legal level of budgetary control is the fund
level. The District’s budget must be adopted by June 30 prior to the budget year, but may be revised for
any reason no later than January 3! of the budget year. Budgets are developed and monitored for
compensation costs, utilities and other fixed costs at the District level, and for discretionary (site based)
spending at the department or school level.

Staffing levels are authorized for each site and are tracked monthly to insure usage within budgeted
limits. On-line budget inquiry access plus monthly reports are provided to each site’s administrative staff,
to allow monitoring of their discretionary budgets.

Budgetary control 1s also maintained through the use of an encumbrance accounting system.
Encumbrances outstanding at year-end lapse, but are generally reappropriated as part of the following
year’s budget. Unspent discretionary budgets at year-end may also be reappropriated for each school or
department in the following budget year, thereby; fostering responsible spending and allowing site
management to develop longer range spending plans. Schools’ discretionary budgets also include a share
of revenues generated from building rentals. Under state law, each scheol is required to involve each
employee group, the Board of Education, and the District Accountability Committee in the budget
development process.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered
from a broader perspective of the specific environment within which the District operates.
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Local economy. The District has been negatively impacted by the loss of technology jobs in the past
several years. In addition, the cusrent national and statewide recession has had a predictable impact on
the local area as well.

There are seeds of optimism for new growth including the potential of bringing new business to the
community through the ACE technology manufacturing park. Local retail sales opportunities remain
poised for growth as well once economic recovery begins.

State Funding. Because the General Fund revenues for public schools in Celorade are predominantly
determined by the School Finance Act, total revenues will normally not fluctuate significantly.

School districts are also subject to the provisions of an amendment to Article X, Section 20 of the State
Constitution called the TABOR Amendment (Taxpayers Bill of Rights), which limits increases in
governmental revenues, taxes and spending.

Under the TABOR Amendment, school districts” annual increases to revenues or spending over the prior
year are limited to the combined increase in student enrollment and inflation (measured by
Denver/Boulder consumer price index). These limits apply to the combined funds of the District except
those specifically excluded within the law, such as voter approved bond issues and tax increases. In
November 2000, voter approval was given to the District to remove the restriction on growth in revenue
effective for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2000 and beyond.

In November 2000, voters approved an amendment to the State Constitution intended to establish
minimum funding levels for public schools for 2001-2002 through 2010-2011. Known as Amendment
23, this mandate established a state level financial reserve intended to pay for K-12 funding growth of
inflation plus 1% annually for the 10 year time period.

Beginning in 08/09 however, a significant state and national economic downturn has negatively impacted
school funding in Colorado regardless of this amendment. The following funding reductions and/or
significant rescissions have taken place thus far for the District.

Fiscal 2008-09 = $490,000 rescission

Fiscal 2009-10 = $1.9 MM funding cut + $380,000 rescission

Fiscal 2010-11 = $4.0 MM funding cut

Fiscal 2011-12 = $4.8 MM funding cut

Fiscal 2012-13 = more proposed K-12 cuts per Governor Hickenlooper’s preliminary proposed budget
that will be debated and finalized in the coming months.

Clearly, as long as the state budget shortfalls continue, K-12 funding will continue in its cusrent state of
decline.

District General Fund Impact

The District has adopted a balanced response to the above referenced revenue losses for two consecutive
years now.

Implementing an updated budget process with increased levels of stakeholder and community
participation and input the District has attempted to maintain or improve service levels to its student
populations in critical areas while responsibly reducing expenditure budgets in respense to the funding
reductions.

i1l



Over two years the distriet has implemented budget cuts totaling $7.5 MM. Over that same period
inflation & intentional program investments ($1.4 MM) and other mandatory increases (charter school
support of $3.6 MM) have mitigated those savings to a net of $2.5 MM versus fiscal 2009-10 budgetary
levels.

In addition to the budget reductions District budget managers also returned in 2010-11 one-time savings
versus budget of more than $4 MM in previously authorized expenditures accumulated over time. These
savings are part of the General Fund Budgetary Highlights discussed in the Management’s Discussion
and Analysis section of this report.

Through years of conservative fiscal management the District has been able to generate reserves avatlable
in part to help mitigate the impact of the recent funding cuts. During fiscal 2010-11 & 2011-12 the board
has authorized use of $2 MM and 37 MM respectively to support the continuance of important student
academic program offerings.

In addition to expense reductions and prudent use of reserves, the District requested authorization from
local taxpayers for temporary (12 years) increased local funding of $12.8 MM annually designed to
mitigate on a longer term level the impact of state funding cuts. Voters rejected that request during
November 2011.

The District’s current level of General Fund reserves will still provide some flexibility when balancing
ongoing expenditure cuts to revenue reductions in 2012-13. Reserve balances however will reach a level
where they can longer provide that support. Ultimately, the District will need to see a sufficient
combination of state funding rebound, increased local support, and deeper expenditure reductions to
offset what is currently a $7 MM annual imbalance.

Cash management policies and practices. The District’s policy is to invest public funds in a manner
which will provide the highest investment return with the maximum security, while meeting the cash flow
demands of the District and conforming to all federal, state, and local statutes governing the investment of
public funds. Accordingly, temporarily idle cash is invested during the year in the Colorado Government
Liquid Assets Trust (ColoTrust), a-AAA rated investment pool.

While district expenditures tend to be fairly consistent throughout the year, its revenue cycle reflects that
of local property taxes for approximately 1/3 of its School Finance Act revenues. Those property tax
revenues are collected mostly during the latter part of the fiscal year. The district currently maintaing
sufficient internal reserves, which prevent any cash flow concerns. However, recent state funding cuts
have increased the likelihood of spending those reserves down to a level that could require cash flow
support through the state’s interest free loan program.

Risk Management. The District utilizes an internal service fund, the Insurance Reserve Fund, to account
for msk management costs such as property and liability insurance, legal claims, and workers
compensation premiums. Revenues are allocations from the General Fund, as mandated by state law.
The District is insured for property and liability claims through participation in a self-insurance pool with
other school districts.

The District’s share of pool premiums is determined using experience modifiers based on exposure
information and actuarial modifiers based on utilization. The percentage contribution from each member
district causes yearly changes based on these factors. The District benefits from the experience rating in
the liability and property pools. Retention and excess costs amounts for 2010-11 are shown below for the
Colorado Self Insurance Pool (CSDSIP):
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Pool/District
Self-Insured CSDSIP
Retention™
Property Pool $2.,000,000/$5,000 $1,000,000,000
Liability Pool $600,000/$10,000 ** N/A

* Shown on a per claim or incident basis

** Colorado’s Governmental Immunity Act, limits the types of claims that can be brought against a
school district (1.e. claims involving operation of a moter vehicle and claims arising because of a
dangerous condition of any public building) and the amount of monetary damages that a school
district might be ordered to pay. The immunity act places a cap on the amount of damages that
can be awarded against a public entity or employee. The maximum amount that can be recovered
for an injury involving one person in any single occurrence is $150,000. The Maximum amount
that is recoverable for a singe cccurrence involving two or more people 1s $600,000.

Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits

The District contributes to the School Division Trust Fund (SDTF), a cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit pension plan administered by the Public Employees’ Retirement Association of Colorado
(PERA). SDTF provides retirement and disability, annual increases and death benefits for members or their
beneficiaries. All employees of the District are members of the SDTFE. Title 24, Article 51 of the Colorado
Revised Statutes (CRS), as amended, assigns the authority to establish benefit provisions to the State
Legislature.

The District, like other plan participants, is faced with statutory annual increases to the employer funded
contributions of .9% per year through January of 2017 before rates level off at 20.15% at that point. These
increases come at a time when state funding is declining creating increased budgetary pressures during the
current economic downturn.

The District also contributes to the Health Care Trust Fund (HCTF), a cost-sharing multiple-employer
postemployment healthcare plan administered by PERA. The HCTF provides a health care premium
subsidy to PERA participating benefit recipients and their eligible beneficiaries. Title 24, Article 51, Part
12 of the CRS, as amended, assigns the authonty to establish the HCTF benefit provisions to the State
Legislature

The (SDTF) members of the District may voluntarily contribute to the Voluntary Investment Programs
(401(k) Plan), an Internal Revenue Code Section 401(k) and 457 Deferred Compensation Plan, an Internal
Revenue Code Section 457 plan. Both are defined contribution plans administered by PERA. Plan
participation is voluntary, and contributions are separate from others made to PERA. Title 24, Article 51,
Part 14 of the CRS, as amended, assigns the authority to establish the 401(k) Plan provisions to the State
Legislature.

Additional information on the District’s pension arrangements and post-emnployment benefits can be found
in the Notes to Financial Statements section of this report.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association’s (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting to the District for its comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. This was the twenty-second consecutive year that the government has
received this prestigious award. The District also received the Association of School Business Officials
International (ASBQ) Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting award. This was the thirteenth



consecutive year that the District has received this award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of
Achicvement, the District published an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR. This report
satisfied both US GAAP and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current CAFR
continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Programs’ requirements and we are submittmg it to the
GFOA and ASBO to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

The preparation and completion of this report could not have been accomplished without the direct and
indirect contributions of the entire Financial Services Staff. Appreciation and recognition is also extended
to our independent audit firm, Swanhorst & Company LLC, and its professicnal audit staff for all the
assistance and advice they provide throughout the year.

We would also like to thank the Board of Education for their unfailing support for maintaining the highest
standards and professionalism in the management of the District’s finances.

Respectfully submitted,
/'f.:-.‘ ) (1 I .
Dr. Ron Cabrera Stephen Towne
Superintendent of Schools Chief Financial Officer
.r-".'.' f:'. L .‘--_-: fr.r"

Fi
¥

Luke Gonzales
Manager of Accounting & Reporting
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Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting
Presented to

Thompson R2-J School District

Colorado

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2010

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
govermment units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
. teports (CAFRs) achieve the highest

standards in government accounting
and financial reporting,

President
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Executive Director
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Board of Education

Lola Johnson, Vice President Term Expires 2011
Janice Marchman Term Expires 2011
Sharon Olson, Secretary Term Expires 2013
Leonard Sherman Term Expires 2013
Lucille Steiner, President Term Expires 2011
Karen Stockley, Treasurer Term Expires 2011
Leslie Young Term Expires 2011

Superintendent’s Executive Staff

Dr. Ronald G. Cabrera Superintendent

Michael Jones Assistant Superintendent, HR/School Support

Dr. Judy Skupa Deputy Superintendent

Stephen Towne Executive Director, Business Services

Wesley Fothergill Director of Communications and Community Resources
Erv Klein Director of Support/Technology Services

Annette Overton Director of Quality Performance

Shana Garcia Executive Assistant to Supenntendent/BOE Secretary



FINANCIAL SECTION

The Financial section may be viewed as a “reporting pyramid.” The financial statements and
schedules are presented only as far down the reporting pyramid (in terms of increasing levels of
detail) as necessary to (1) report fairly financial position and operating results; (2) demonstrate
legal compliance; and (3) assure adequate disclosure.

The levels of the pyramid are:
Financial Section

Independent Auditors’ Report:

This is the opinion of the Independent Certified Public Accountants, Swanhorst & Company
LLC, on the information in the financial section. This audit is to determine that information is
fairly presented, complete and in conformance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (US GAAP).

Management’s Discussion and Analysis:
The Management’s Discussion and Analysis provides a narrative introduction, overview, and
analysis of the basic financial statcments.

Basic Financial Statements

These statements provide an overview of the financial position of the District as a whole,
focusing on major funds instead of fund types and groups. They also serve as an introduction to
the more detailed statements and schedules that follow. The notes to the financial statements are
an integral part of the basic financial statements and contain the “Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies” and other notes necessary for adequate disclosure.

Required Supplemental Information
These statements include budgetary data for the General Fund and Major Special Revenue Funds.

Combining of Non-major Funds and Individual Fund Statements

These statements and schedules present information on the individual funds where (a) there is
only one fund of a specific type, or (b) sufficient detail to assure adequate disclosure is not
presented in the basic statements. These statements and schedules are also used to present certain
budgetary data.
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Board of Education
Thompson School District R2-1
Loveland, Colorado

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental actjvities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate discretely presented component units and remaining fund information of the Thompson
School District R2-T as of and for the year ended lune 30. 2011, which collectively comprise the basic financial
statements of the Thompson School District R2-1, as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
respensibility of the Thompson School District R2-1’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these
financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the New Vision Charter Schoo!
which represent 84 percentand 67 percent, respectively, ofthe assets and revenues of the discretely presented component
units. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our
opinion, insofar as it relates Lo amounts included for the New Vision Charter School, is based solely upon the report of
the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards. issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial stalements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We helieve that our audit and the report of the other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our
opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate discretely presented component units and remaining fund information of the
Thompson School District R2-J as of June 30, 2011, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows,
where applicable, for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

For lhe yearended June 30,2011, the Thompson School District R2-J adopled the standards of Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards. we have also tssued our report dated November 22, 2011, on our
consideration of the Thompson School District R2-J's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of
that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be
considered in assessing the results of our audit.

8400 E. Crescent Parkway » Suite 600 « Greenwood Village, CO 80111 « (720) 528-4306 Fax: (720) 528-4307



The management’s discussion and analysis and required supplementary information listed in the table of contents are
not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required suppiementary information.
However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
Thompson School District R2-J"s basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund financial statements
and schedules listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part
of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the bastc financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Ewaribinnd 4 G veasy (UL

November 22, 2011



Thompson School District R2-J
Management’s Discussion & Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

As management of the Thompson School District R2-J, we oftfer readers of the District’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the District for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here
in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal and
financial statements, which immediately follow this section.

Financial Highlights
Key financial highlights for 2011 are as follows:

e In total, net assets increased by $2,549,495 for the year ended June 30, 2011.
The net increase was composed of the following elements:

Invested in Capital Assets, net of Related Debt $ 2,354,765
Restricted for:
Debt Services ( 8,779
TABOR 23,697
Land & Land Improvements 53,860
Assigned for:
Grants 288,532
Colorado Preschool (11,673)
Unrestricted (150,907)
Net Increase $ 2,549,495

Most significant among these is the growth of Invested in Capital Asset net of
Related Debt. Within this component the Building Fund balance is spent down
intentionally as the district moves closer to completion of the building projects
assoclated with 2005 Bonds proceeds

e Total assets of governmental activities decreased by $5,464,587 attributed to the
following elements:

Increase
(Decrease)
Cash $  (240,606)
Receivabies (1,204,378)
Due from Other Governments 539,089
Bond Issuance Costs (49,139)
Capital Assets, net of Accumulated Depreciation (4,509,553)
Net Decrease $ (5,464,587)

The decrease in receivables was primarily due to the decrease in the year-end
property tax receivable resulting from a stronger than usual year in property tax
collections. Annual depreciation exceeded additions to capital assets for the year
by $4.4 million. Together, these two items explain the overall net decrease.
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Total assets of business type activities increased by $218,441 attributed to the
following elements:

Increase
{Decrease)
Cash $ 222,104
Due from Other Governments 3,385
Inventory 5,640
Capital Assets, net of Accumulated Depreciation (12,688)
Net Increase N 218,441

The most significant variance was the increase was Cash due to the Nutrition
Services program improved operating results,

Total Liabilities of governmental activities decreased by $7,825,623 due to the
following items:

Increase
(Decrease)

Accounts Payable $ ( 925,142)
Accrued Salaries and Beneflts 569,117
Retainage Payable {487,871)
Accrued Interest Payable (800)
Due to Other Governments {101,773)
Liabilities due within one year 160,498
Liabilities due in morc than onc ycar {7,039,652)

Net Decrease § (7,825,623)

Accounts payable decreased due to the lesser amount of large bond related
construction projects in-process as compared to the prior year. The decrease in
long term liabilities 1s typical and reflects the annual principal payments made.
Other changes in liabilities are minimal variations expected during the course of
business.

Governmental-activities general revenues accounted for $120.4 millien in
revenue or 87 percent of all revenues. Program specific revenues in the form of
charges for services, grants and contributions, accounted for $17.3 million or I3
percent of total revenues of $137.7 million.

The District had $135.4 million in expenses related to governmental activities;
only $17.3 million of these expenses were offset by program specific charges for
services, grants and contributions. General revenues (primarily state equalization
and property taxes) of $120.4 million were adequate to provide for these
programs.

Among major funds, the general fund had $115.5 million in revenues and $111.4
million in expenditures and transfers out. The general fund’s fund balance
increased to $29.7 million from $25.6 million.



Thompson School District R2-J
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= Net assets for Enterprise funds increased over last year as a result of significant
decrease in expenses.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This annual report consists of five parts: introduction, management’s discussion and analysis, the
basic financial statements, supplementary information and a statistical section. The basic
financial statements include two kinds of statements that present different views of the District.

s The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide
both short-term and long-term information about the District’s overall financial
status.

* The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual
parts of the District, reporting the District’s operations in more detail than the
government-wide statements.

e The governmental funds statements tell how basic services such as instruction
were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending.

e Proprietary funds statements offer short and long-term financial information
about the activities the District operates like businesses, such as Nutritional
Services.

¢ Fiduciary funds statements provide information about the financial relationships
in which the District acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of others.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the statements
and provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required
supplemental information that further explains and supports the financial statements with a
comparison to the District’s budget for the year.

Government-wide Statements

The government-wide statements report information about the District as a whole using
accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net
assets includes all of the District’s assets and liabilities. All of the current year’s revenues and
expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or
paid.

The two government-wide statements report the District’s net assets and how they have changed.
Net assets — the difference between the District’s assets and liabilities — are one way to measure
the District’s financial health or position.

e QOver time, increases or decreases in the District’s net assets are an indicator of
whether its financial position is improving or deteriorating, respectively.
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e To assess the District’s overall health, one needs to consider additional
nonfinancial factors such as changes in the Distret’s property tax base and the
condition of school buildings and other facilities.

In the government-wide financial statements, the District’s activities are divided into two
categories:

e Governmental activities; Most of the District’s basic services are included here,
such as instruction, transportation, maintenance and operations, and
administration. The School Finance Act of 1994, as amended, made up of
property taxes, specific ownership taxes, and state equalization, finances most of
these activities.

®  Business-type activities: The District charges fees to help cover the costs of
certain services it provides. The District’s Nutritional Services program is
included here.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District’s funds,
focusing on its most significant or “major” funds — not the District as a whole. Funds are
accounting devices the District uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending on
particular programs:

e Some funds are required by state law and by bond covenants.

e The District establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular
purposes (such as repaying its long-term debts) or to show that it is properly
using certain revenues (such as federal grants).

The District has three kinds of funds:

*  Governmental funds: Most of the District’s basic services are included in
governmental funds, which generally focus on (1) how cash and other financial
assets that can readily be converted te cash flow in and out and (2) the balances
left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental
funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps you determine
whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near
future to finance the Distriet’s programs. Because this information does not
encompass the additional long-term focus of the government-wide statements,
additional information at the bottom of the govermmental funds statements
explains the relationship (or differences) between them.

¢ Proprietary funds: Services for which the District charges a fee are generally
reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way as
the government-wide statements. The District’s enterprise funds (one type of
proprietary fund) are the same as its business-type activities but provide more
detail and additional information such as cash flows.
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o Fiduciary funds: The District is the agent, or fiduciary, for assets that belong to
others, such as the education memorial and student activities funds. The District
is responsible for ensuring that those to whom the assets belong use them only
for there intended purposes and the assets reported in these funds. The District
excludes these activities from the government-wide financial statements because
it cannot use these assets to finance its operations.

Financial Analysis of the District as a Whole

Total assets decreased $5.2 million largely reflecting the decline of $4.6 miltlion in net Capital
Assets brought about by annual depreciation. The District capitalized assets during the year of
$24.2 million compared to depreciation of $7.7 million.

The District’s combined net assets increased by $2.5 million (2.79%) over the previous year to
$94.1 million. Most of this change in the District’s financial position came from its governmental
activities, the net assets of which increased $2.4 million to $92.9 million.

The Colorado Amendment X to the State Constitution (Taxpayer Bill of Rights (TABOR))
requires the district to establish certain reserves. These reserves are adjusted annually to 3% of
applicable revenues or fiscal year spending. The Unrestricted, Unassigned Net Assets increased
overall, mainly due to the increase in the General Fund’s fund balance.

The net assets of the District’s business-type activities increased $0.02 million to $1,190,833.
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Table 1 provides a summary of the District’s net assets for 2011 compared to 2010:

Table 1
Condensed Statement of Net Assets
{In Millions)
Governmental Business-Type Total Total Percenlage
Activities Activities Scheol District Change
2011 2010 1011 2010 2011 2010 2010-2011
Assels
Current & Other Assers 3 08.401 3 69.307 3 L1103 5 0872 3 65.504 b 0179 b -0.96%
Capital Assets 173.703 178.262 0.374 0.3%7 174 077 178.649 -2.56%
Total Assets 242.104 247.569 1.477 1.259 243 581 248.828 -2.11%
Liabilities
Olher Liabilities 23 987 24773 0.269 0.245 24,256 25.018 -3.05%
Long-Term Liabilities 125218 132.258 0.017 0.011 125.235 132.269 -5.32%
Total Liabilities 14%.205 157.031 0.286 0.256 1494914 157.287 -4.96%
Net Assets
Invested in Capial
netol relaled debl 54.767 52.399 0.374 0.387 55.14] 52.786 4.46%
Resricled 21.066 20.718 0.059 0.062 21.125 20.780 1.66%
Unrestricted 17.066 17.421 0.758 0.553 17.824 17.974 -0.83%
Total Nel Assets 3 92.899 3 90.538 5 1L19l § 1.002 £ 94.090 M Q1.540 5 2.79%

Table 2 shows the changes in net assets for fiscal year 2011 compared to 2010:

Table 2
Changes in Net Assets (In Millions)
Governmental Business-Type Total
Activities Aetivities School District
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Revenues
Program revenues

Charges lor services 3 3.061 £ 1325 5 1.824 5 1,952 $ 4,885 ) 37

Operaung Grants & Connbuuons 14.228 14.717 2613 2467 16.841 17.184
General revennes

Property taxes 58.972 59.700 - - 58972 39.700

Stale revenue 57.405 64,803 - . 57.405 64 803

Cnher 4122 0550 - - 4122 0550

Total Revenues 137788 141.095 4437 4419 142.225 145514
Expenses
Instruction 72447 72939 - - 72.447 72.939
Pupil & Instructional Services 20595 22.688 - - 20.595 22.688
Admunistration & Business 11810 13.502 - - 11.810 13.502
Mainienance & Operations 13.855 5882 - - 13855 5.882
Transportarion 5.293 12.245 - - 5.293 12.243
Other 11.356 11.160 4320 4348 15.676 15.508

Total expenses 135356 138.414 4320 4348 139.676 142762
Transfers (0.071) (0.058) 0071 0058 - -
Inerease (decrease) in net assets 2.361 2623 0188 0.129 2,549 2952
Net Assets - July | 90.538 87915 1002 0873 91.540 28 788
Net Assets - June 30 5 92.89%9 3 90 338 3 1191 3 1.002 3 94,090 S 91.540
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State equalization and property taxes accounted for most of the District’s total revenue, with each
contributing 42 cents and 43 cents of every dollar raised respectively (Table 3). Another 10
percent came from state and federal grants for specific programs and the remainder from fees
charged for services.

The District’s expenses (73 percent) are predominantly related to instructing, caring for (pupil
services) and transporting students (Table 4). The District’s administrative and business activities
accounted for 9 percent of total costs, while maintenance and other operations cost 18percent.

Table 3
Sources of Revenues for Fiscal Year 2010-11
Charges for services
Other 3% 2%
State revenue
42%
Property taxes
43%
Operating Grants &
Contributions
10%

Table 4

Expenses for Fiscal Year 2010-11
Transportation
Other A%

Maintenance & 8%
Operations

10% \

e
’E J
sl £ &8 SN
Administrat &_/ tnstruction
mlnnsFra ion 549
Business T
9% | j'
Pupil & —
Instructional
Support
15%
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Governmental Activifies

The primary source of operating revenue for school districts comes from the School Finance Act
of 1994 (SFA). Under the SFA the District received 36,461 per funded pupil for 2010-11. The
district’s funded pupil count was 14,470. For the 2010-11 fiscal year the District continued to be
one of the lowest funded districts in the state. Funding for the SFA comes from property taxes,
specific ownership tax and state equalization. The District receives approximately 66 percent of
this funding from state equalization while the remaining amounts come from property taxes and
specific ownership tax. State law allows school districts to obtain an additional 25 percent of
SFA program funding from local property taxes. This is accomplished by successfully passing a
mill levy override ballot question.

In 1999 District voters approved a mull levy override with maximum anmual revenue of $7.5
million in property taxes from annual mills levied not to exceed 8.5. The primary objectives of
the 1999 override are to provide additional support for; instructional staff to student ratios,
textbooks & instructional supplies library books, a variety of specific instructional programs,
technology replacements and support, and operating costs of Mountain View High School.

Annual revenues from this override are no longer sufficient to cover the inflationary increases
associated with the specific objectives of this override. The Board of Education has chosen to
allocate other ongoing general fund revenues to cover the differences rather than cutting specific
items from the objectives at this time.

In 2006, district voters approved an additional mill levy override. The 2006 override’s primary
objectives are to support instructional staff to student ratios, operating expense support for 3 new
elementary schools and additions or modifications to other existing facilities as financed by the
2005 bond issue, educational improvements, technology upgrades, and additional support staff.

This particular overnde allows for maximum annual revenue of $6,540,000 in property taxes with
annual mills levied not exceeding 4.15 in any year. For 2010-2011 revenues from this mill levy
were just over $5.7 million. With current district tax rolls flat or in slight retreat this override will
not reach its annual revenue maximum until assessed valuations resume sustained growth for
several years. Currently, annual expenditures are slightly in excess of annual revenues but
sustained for now by suffictent fund reserves.

The statement of activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services and
grants offsetting those services. Table 5 shows, for govemmental activities, the total cost of
services and the net cost of services. That is, it identifies the cost of these services supported by
unrestricted state equalization and property taxes.

to
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Table 5
Governmental Activities
(In Millions)
Total Cost of Net Cost of
Services Services
2011 2010 2011 2010

[nstruction s 72.447 $ 72.939 $ 60.065 $ 60.942
Pupil & Instructional Services 20.595 22688 18412 20.594
Administration & Business 11.810 13.502 11.592 13.296
Maintenance & Qperations 13.855 5.882 13.793 5.822
Transportation 5.293 12.243 7.231 11,200
Other 11.356 11.160 6.974 10.518

Total expenses $ 135356 $ 138.414 $ 118.067 3 122.372

The cost of all governmenial activities this year was $135.4 million.

e Some of the cost was financed by the users of the District’s programs ($3.1
million).

e The federal and state govemment subsidized certain programs with grants and
contributions ($14.2 million).

*  Most of the District’s costs ($118.1 million), however, were financed by State
and Distnict taxpayers.

e A portion of governmental activities was financed with $57.4 million in state
equalization from the School Finance Act of 1994 (SFA) and $55.1 million in
property taxes, (329.7 million from the SFA, $12.9 from the 1999 and 2006 voter
approved mill levy overrides; and $12.5 million raised to repay the District’s
annual payment on Bonded debt.)

Business-Type Activities
Business-type activities of the district are limited to the nutritional services fund. This program

had revenues of $4.4 million and expenses of $4.3 million. Business-type activities receive no
support from tax revenue.

Financial Analysis of the District’s Funds

These funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. All govermmental
funds have total revenues of $139.2 million and expenditures of $137.7 million. The general
funds’ fund balance increased by $4.2 million due to improved performance versus budget
discussed in detail in the budgetary highlights section immediately below.

11
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The District’s budget is prepared according to Colorado law and is based on accounting for
certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts and disbursements. The most significant budgeted
fund is the General Fund. Key deviations versus budget are explained below,

Total revenues for 10/11 were $2.8 MM more than budget.

$1.2 MM is from property taxes, as past due collections from prior years ($3.9MM)
exceeded new delinquencies for the current assessment year ($2.7MM).

Equalization exceeded budget by $420k as the legislature approved supplemental PPR
funding after the district’s board had made its final budget amendments in January.
Specific ownership tax collections continue to trend downward. Though down 3205k
versus last year collections still exceeded budget estimates by $206k.

The district received a 1-time unplanned dividend from its health insurance provider of
$372k, $330k in unbudgeted high cost special education reimbursements, and §119k in
unplanned national forest monies.

Actual expenditures were $7.9 MM below budget.

Schools and departments are traditionally allowed to carry over certain unused dollars
from previous years. The 10/11 budget included $4.03 MM of such monies. The district’s
board however never released those monies for expenditure due to the continuing revenue
declines of the school Finance Act resulting in savings versus budget of that cntire
amount.

During February of 2011 the district through detailed research determined that certain
budget projection practices were overly conservative, overstating some benefit costs.
District expectations of $1.2 MM savings versus budget in this arca are confirmed by the
actual results and budget practices going forward have been modified as a result.

Also in February 2011 district research revealed that certain FI'E were not being spent as
budgeted. That research indicated the district would likely save approximately $1 MM
versus budget in this area as a result. Actual results indicate savings of $1.2 MM and the
district is creating tracking tools to help improve budget precision in this area for the
future.

For 10/11 schools and departments in some cases were able to save monies against
budget that may be authorized for expenditure during 11/12. Those nonies total
approximately $1.1 MM. The remaining $400k in savings is not under consideration for
such treatment.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

By the end of 2011, the District had invested $173.4 million in land, buildings, equipment, and
transportation vehicles, $173.0 million, of which was in governmental activities. Table 6 shows a
comparison of fiscal years 2011 and 2010:

12
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Table 6
Capital Assets at June 30
(Net of Depreciation, in Millions)

Governmental Business-Type Total
Activities Activities School District
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Land $ 14811 $ 14811 3 - § - § 14811 $ 14811
Land Improvemerts 0.100 - - - 0.100 -
Water Rights 1.130 1.050 - - 1130 1.050
Construction in Progress 2005 21.1%4 - - 2.095 21.194
Bunldings 148.532 134.522 - - 148532 134.522
Eijuiproent 3318 2972 0374 0.387 3692 3359
Transportation 3.030 2976 - - 3.030 2976

Totals 3 173.016 $ 177.525 $ 03M $ 0387 $ 173390 § 177912

Construction in Progress decreased as a result of the projects at Berthoud High School, Loveland High
School Swimming Pool, Ponderosa Elementary, and the Transportation Facility being completed. Along
with the in-process projects at Coyote Ridge Elementary School, Linceln Early Childhood Center,
Berthoud Elementary School, Ivy Stockwell Elementary School, and Berthoud High School.

It is important to note that without significant new investment in capital assets the existing net
values will decrease due to annual depreciation. New investments are most significant when the
district has bond proceeds available. With most bond proceeds building projects complete, and
General Fund monies tight, the District has minimal new investment monies available for capital
assets.

Additional information on the District’s capital assets can be found in Note 5 of the Notes to
Financial Statements report, page 37.

Long-Term Debt

At year-end, the District had $128.2 million in bonds, certificates of participation and capital
leases payable, $7.4 million due within one year (Table 7).

Table 7
QOutstanding Debt, at Year End
(In Millions}
Governmental Governmental
Activities Activities
2011 2010
General Obligation Bonds 3 124.096 5 130.638
Certificates of Participation 3.260 3.450
Capital Lease Obligation Payable 0.876 1.071
Total 3 128.232 $ 135.159

Additional information on the District’s long-term debt can be found in Notes 7 through 10 of this
report.

13
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Factors Bearing on the District’s Future

At the time these financial statements were prepared and audited, the District was aware of the
following existing circumstances that could significantly affect its financial health in the future:

With a significant economic downturn across the state and across the nation, the state
budget for Colorado has suffered tremendously. The district suffered a rescission of
$2.3 MM of School Finance Act monies during 09/10, and funding cuts of $4.0 MM,
and another $4.8 MM in 10/11 & 11/12 respectively. It appears likely that K-12
funding in Coloradoe will step back yet again for 12/13.

One—time federal stimulus monies that helped dampen the impact are no longer
available as of September 2011.

The district has reduced expenditures since the funding crisis began during 09/10.
Additionally the district has relied upon its General Fund reserves to help mitigate
classroom 1mpact including planned spend downs of $2.0 MM in 10/11 & §7.2 MM
for 11/12. There remain reserves available te similarly help mitigate program cuts in
12/13. But resources are limited and may not be sufficient to avoid further program
cuts altogether.

The district asked local voters for replacement funding through a mitl levy override
during the fall of 2011, The measure was defeated but could well be re-introduced
during the next clection.

Contacting the District’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide the District’s citizens, taxpayers, parents, investors
and creditors with a general overview of the District’s finances and to demonstrate the District’s
accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need
additional financial information, contact the Financial Services Office, Thompson Scheol District
R2-J, 800 South Taft Ave., Loveland, Colorado 80537.
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ASSETS
Current Assers
Cash and Investimenis
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalenis
Receivables
Prepaid Expense
Due from Other Governmenis
Inventory

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets

Bond Issuance Costs. (net of Accumulated Amortization)

Capilal Assets

(net of Accumulzaled Deprecialion - where applicable):

Land

Waler Righs
Canstruction in Progress
Land Improvements
Buildings

Equipment
Transporiation

Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Asscts

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Salaries and Benefils
Retlainage Payable
Accrued Interest Payable
Due to Other Govemments
Uneamed Revenue
Current Portion of Long-Termn Debt

Total Curreut Liabilities

Moncurrent Liabilities
Loan Pavable
Bonds Payable
Cerificates of Participation
Capilal Lease Obligations
Compensated Absences
Early Retirement Stipends

Totat Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Ner Assels

Invesled i Capilal Assels, net of Relaled Debe

Restricted for:
Debrt Service
TABOR
Repairs and Replaceinenis
Land and Land Improvements
Granis
Colorade Preschool Program
Unresiricled

Total Net Assels

The accompanying notes arc an integral pan of this statement

Thompson School District R2-J
Statement of Net Assets
As of June 30, 2011

Primary
Government

Governmental Business-Type Component
Aclivities Activities Total Unils
3 61,703,583 3 746,612 62,450,105 1.932.536
- - - 546,798
4,008,930 - 4,008 983 1,757
- - - 535,000
2.688.074 80.990 2,769.064 -
- 274958 274,958 -
68,400,637 1,102,560 69,503,197 1036091
687.961 - 687901 139.309
14.810.666 - 14.810,666 -
1,133,500 - 1,130,500 -
2095092 - 2.095.092 -
99,938 90,938 -
148,531,714 - 148.531.714 3.491.772
3,318.119 374,404 3.692,343 -
3020622 - 3.020,622 -
173,703,632 174,404 174 078.036 3,651,081
242.104,269 1,474 964 243,581,233 6,687,172
1,035,168 49368 1,084,536 9.032
12,905 648 141.748 13.047.396 95,234
37,501 - 37,501 -
231356 - 231,356 81,465
140,127 - 140,127 -
- 73,702 73.702 -
9,637 456 4,500 9,641,956 53,386
23,087,256 269,318 24,256,574 238317
- - - 4,749,785
117,066,273 - 117,066,273 -
13.060,000 - 3,060,000 -
671,925 - 671,925 -
221,274 16,813 238,087 -
4,108 660 - 4. 108.660 -
125218,133 16,813 125,234,946 4,749,785
149,205,389 286,131 149,491,520 4,989,102
54,766,501 374,404 55,140 905 (1.311,399)
14,655,009 - 14,655,009 483,286
4,675,374 50,037 4.734.431 100.072
- - - 63,412
1.026,589 - 1,026,589 -
585948 - 585918 -
123674 - 123,674 -
17.065,795 757,372 17.823.167 2,362,799
M 92,398,880 £ 1,190,833 94,089,713 1,698,070




Thompson School District R2-J
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Program Revenues

Operating
Charges for Grants and
Expenses Service Contributions
Primary Governinent
Government Activities
Total Instruction 5 72,447 458 $ 1,655,641 5 19,727,209
Support Services
Pupil Services 9,614,206 - 1,488,166
Instructional Staff 10,981,248 90,403 605,148
General Admuinistration 1,097,871 - -
School Adminmistration 8,478,267 - 203,494
Business Services 2,233389 14,529 -
Mainienance/Cperations 13,854,509 - 61,163
Pupil Transportation 5,292,524 - 1,061,995
Central Supporting Services 3,934,697 1,299.973 -
Community Services 1,443,698 - 80,613
Interest on Long-term Debt 5,977,902 - -
Tolal Support Services 62,908,312 1,404 905 3,500,585
Total Governmental Aerivities 135,355,770 3,060,546 14.227.794
Business-Tvpe Activities
Nutritional Serviees 4,320,056 1,824 212 2612312
Total Business-Type Activities 4,320,056 1,824,212 2,612,312
Total School District 139,675,826 4,884,758 16,840,106
Component Units
Charter School 2,903.688 35,426 -
Thempson Education Fonndation 1,369,086 - 1,319,368
H 4,272,774 S 55426 b3 1,319,368

General Revenues
Property 1axes levied lor:
General Purposes
Mill Levy Override
Debt Services
Specilic Ownership Taxes levied for:
General Purposes
Equalizalion Entitlement
Payment in Lieu of Land Dedication
Imerest and [nvestment Earnings
Grantz and Coniributions not
Restrieted (o Specific Programs
Miscellaneous
Transfer

Total General Revenues and Translers

Changes in Net Assers
Nel Assels - Beginuing

Nel Assels - Ending
The aeeompanying noles are an inlegral pan ol this slalement



Net (Expenses) Revenues
And Changes in Net Assels

Governmental Business-Type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
(60,064.609) {60,064.609)
(8.126,040) - (8,126,040}
(10,285,696) - (10.285,696)
(1,097,871) - (1.097.871)
(8,274.772) (8,274,772) -
(2,218.860) - (2,218,860
(13,793,344) - (13,793,244
(4,230,528) - (4,230.528)
(2,614,725) - (2,634,723)
(1,363.083) - {1,363,083) -
(5,577.903) - {5,977,903) -
(58,002,822) - {58,002,822)
(118,067,431 {118,067,431)
116,468 116,468
- 116,468 116,468 -
(118.067.431) 116,468 (117,950,961} -
. - (2,848,262)
- - - {49,718)
- - (2,897,980)
29,728,007 - 29,728,007
12,857,383 - 12,857,383 -
12,532,757 - 12,532,757 -
3,853,468 - 3,853,468 -
57,404,922 - 57,404,922 -
242816 - 242,816 -
107,407 598 108,003 105,537
3,773,100 . 3.773,100 41,072
- - - 2,783,310
(71.392) 71,3492 - -
120,428 468 71,990 120,500,458 2,929,940
2,361,037 188 458 2,549495 31,960
90,537,843 1,002,375 91,540,218 1,666,110
92,898,880 3 1,190,833 3 94,089,713 1.698.070
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ASSETS

Cash and Investments
Reccivables

Dug Irom Other Governments
Due from Other Funds

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities
Aegcounls Payable
Accrued Salanes and Benefus
Dug to Other Govemment
Due 1o Other Funds
Deferred Revenue
Retainage Payable

Total Liabilities

Fund Balauces
Restricted [or:
TABOR
Debt Services
Capital Projects
Land & Land Improvemenls
Granits
Preschool
Assigned for:
Studem Specific Programs
Capital Projecls
Unrestrieted, Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

Thompson School District R2-J
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30,2011

Government

Designated- Bond
General Purpose Granls Redemption Building
40,631,809 - 13,550,065 2,746,175
3,240,172 - 768.808 -

- 2,688,074 - -
179,851 - - -
44,051,832 2,688,074 14,318.873 2,746,173

670,620 25,196 - 86.553
11,538,584 1,267,048 - -
- 140,127 - -
- 179,851 - -
2,115,608 455,743 551,823 -
14,324,812 2,067,965 551,823 86,553
4,633,872 34,171 - -
- - 13,767,050 -
- - - 2,659.622
- 585,938 - -
123,674 - - -
24,969,474 - - -
29,727,020 620,109 13,767,050 2,659,622
44,051,832 2,688,074 14,318,873 2,746,175

The accompanying noles are an inlegral part of this slatement




Other Total
Governmental Governmental
Funds Funds
4,775,534 61,703,583
- 4,008,980
. 2,688,074
- 179,851
4,775,534 68,580,488
252,799 1,035,168
100,016 12,905,648
- 140,127
- 179,851
- 3,123,174
37,501 37,501
390,316 17,421,469
7,331 4,675,374
136,136 14,103,186
- 2,659,622
1,026,589 1,026,589
- 385,938
- 123,674
1,340,998 1,340,598
1,674,164 1,674,164
- 24,969,474
4,385,218 51,159,019
4,775,534 68,580,488

Thompson School District R2-J
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet

With the Statement of Net Assets

June 30,2011

Amounts reported lor govemmental activilies in the

slatement ol nel assets are different because:

Tolal Fund Balance - Governmental Funds

Capiltal assets used in governmenlal aclivities are not lnancial
resources & therefore are nol reported as assets in governmental funds.

The cost of capital assets is
Accumulated deprecialion is

5

262835917

(89,820,246)

Revenues that do not provide current finaneial resourees are deferred
in the governmental funds but are recognized in the governmental-wide
financial slalements. This amount represents property tax and grant

receivables nol available at year-end.

Long-lerm liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and
payable in the current period and therefore are nol reported

as hiabilities in the funds. Long-term liabilities at year end

in the funds. Long-term liabilities at year end consist of:

Total Net Assets - Governmenial Activities
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Accrued Interest Payable
Bonds Payable

Bond Issuance Costs

Loss on Reissuance Cost
Premium on Bond Financing
Deferred Interest

Capilal Lease Obligations
Certifieates of Parieipation
Compensated Absences
Early Retrcment Stipends

(231,356)
(113,553,544)
687,961
1212,856
(4,391,925)
(7.323.,660)
(876,179)
(3,260,000}
{501,274

(6,121,862}

$

51,159,019

173,015,671

3,123,174

(134,398,584)

92,898,880



Thompson School District R2-J
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fnnd Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Government
Designated- Bond
General Purpose Grants Redemplion Building
Revenue
Taxes 3 48,312,413 3 - 12,532,757 $ -
Intergovernmental 67,162,981 9,310,733 - -
Investment earnings 53,806 1,445 25731 4,621
Other - - - -
TOTAL REVENUE 115,529,200 9,312,178 12,558 488 4,621
Expendilures
Current
Instruclion
Salaries and Benefits 57,407,598 5,041,392 - -
Purchased Services 1,459,570 134,396 - -
Supplies and Materials 1,913,136 395,578 - -
Equipinent 718,591 82,380 - -
Other Expenditures 119,936 - - -
Total Instruclion 61,618,831 5,653,746 - -
Suppon Serviees
Pupil Services 6,956,234 2,164 949 - -
Instructional Siaff R561,414 1,140,849 - -
General Administration 764,778 - - 275,701
School Administration 7,508,858 527,109 - -
Business Services 2,067,520 - - -
Maintenauce/Operations 10,203,833 100,767 - 1,151,527
Pupil Transportation 3,528,424 11,206 - -
Central Supporting Services 2,654,360 - - -
Community Serviees 510,356 88,703 - -
Capital Projects - - - 1,609,301
Charter School 2,747,307 - - -
Debl Service - Principal - - 3,376,194 -
Debt Service - Inlerest - - 8,904,231 -
Total Support Services 45,503,134 4,033,583 12,280,425 3,036,529
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 107,121,965 9.687329 12,280,425 3,036,529
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over/{(Under) Expenditures 8,407,235 (375,151 278,063 (3,031,908)
Other Fiuaneing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In - 649 346 - -
Transflers Qut (4,234,946) - - -
Total Other Financiug Sources (Uses) (4,234,946) 649,346 - -
Net Change in Fund Balances 4,172 289 274,195 278,063 (3,031,908)
Fund Balances - Beginning of the Year 25,554 731 345914 13,488,987 5,691,530
Fund Balances - End of the Year 3 29,727 020 3 620,109 13,767,050 3 2,659,622

The accoinpanying notes are an integral part ol this staletnent
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$

Other Total
Governmental Governmental
Funds Funds
- 60,845,170
- 76,473,714
21,804 107,407
1,779,721 1,779,721
1,801,525 139,206,012
575,859 63,024 849
167,697 1,761,663
215218 2,523,932
134,632 935,603
21,949 141 885
1,115,355 68,387.932
14,705 9,135,938
866,068 10,568,331
- 1,040,479
59,685 5,005,652
39,346 2,156,866
912,307 12,368,434
792,291 4,331,921
448,138 3,102,498
748,985 1,348,044
- 1,609,301
- 2,747.307
385,122 3,761,316
190,176 9,094,407
4,506,823 69,360,494
5,622,178 137,748,426
{3,820,653) 1,457,586
3,585,600 4,234,946
- (4,234,946)
3,585,600 -
(235,053) 1,457,586
4,620,271 49701.433
4,385,218 51,159019

Thompson School District R2-J
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expendifures
and Changes in Fund Balances with the Statement of Activities
For The Year Ended June 30, 2011

Amounts reported lor governmental aclivities in the
stalcmenl of aclivilies are different because:

Tolai net change in fund balanees - goverminental funds $

Capilal oullays lo purchase or build capital assets are reported in governmental funds
as expenditures. However, lor governmental activities those costs are shown m the
staleent of net assets and allocated over their estimatcd useful lives as annnal
depreciation expense in the stalemenl of activities. This is the amount by which
capital outlays excecd depreciation in the period.
Depreciation cxpense (7,652,292)
Capital Qutlays 3,142,739

1,457,586

(4,509,553}

Revenues in the statement ol activities that do nol provide current financial resources
arc not reperted as revenues in the funds. This amount represents the changes in
property laxes and grants not available at year-end.

In the statement ol aclivities, cerain operaling cxpenses - coinpensaled absenees
(vacations) and special termination benelits {early reliremenl) - are measured by

the amounts earned during the year. In the governmental funds, however, expenditures
for these items are measured by the amount ol financial resonrces used (essentially,

the amounts actually paid). This year, special terminalion benefits paid $1,855,244
were Icss than the amounts eaned ($1,911,261) by ($56,017). Vacation uscd

$751,901 was more (han the amounts eamed ($742,887) by $9,014.

Repayment of bonded principal is an cxpenditure in the governinental fuuds, but it
reduces long-term liabililies in the statement of net assels and does not affect the
slatement ol activities. Repayment of boud Principal $3,376,194, accrucd Inlcrest

on 1996 bonds ($633,825) and payments of accrucd intcrest on 1996 Bonds $3,603,806,
Bond Issuance Costs, amortization ($49,139), aortizalion of Preinium and Loss

on refunding of $194,861 and change in accrued inlerest pavablc, $800

Repayment ol'Capilal Lease and Cerlificate of Participation principal is an
cxpenditure in the govermunental funds, but it reduces long-1erm liabilities in the
staicmenl of nct assels and does not affect the statemenm of activities

Prin¢ipal Payinent of Debt

Change in net assets ol governmenlal activitics 3
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(1,417,812)

{47,003)

6,492,697

385,122

2,361,037



Thompsen School District R2-J
Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Fund
June 30, 2011

ASSETS
Currenl Assets
Cash and Invesimenits
Due (rom Other Governmenls
Inventory
Total currem asserts
Noncurrent Assels:
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated
Deprecialion

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Salaries and Benefils
Deferred Revenue
Current poniion oI Compensaled Absenccs

Total Current Liabilities

Nongurrent Liabililies
Compcusated Absences

Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets
Resiricied for TABOR.

Unrestricied

Tolal Net Assets

‘The accompanying notes are an inlegral pan of this stalement

Nutrition Services

Fund

746,612
80,990
274,958

1,102,560

374,404

1,476,964

49,368
141,748
73,702
4,500

269318

16,813

16,813

286,131

174,404
59,057
757372

1,190,833
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Thompson Sehool Distriet R2-J
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Fund
For The Year Ended June 30, 2011

Nutrition Services

Fund

Operating Revenue

Foed Sales and Catering Sales 5 1,824,212

TOTAL OPERATING REVYENUE 1,824,212
Operating Expenses

Salartes and Benefils 2,060,603

Purchased Services 82,575

Supplies and Malerials 2,092,798

Deprecialion 84,080

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 4,320,056
Operating Loss {2,495,844)
Non-Operating Revenue

Federal Aid:

USDA Reimbursements 2,363,410
Donated Commodities 176,542

State Categorical Reimburserent 72,360

Interest Eamnings 598

TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUE 2,612,910
Net Loss Before Capital Contribulions 117,066
Capital Contributions 71,392
Change in Nel Assels 188,458
Net Assets

Beginning of the Year 1,002,375
MNet Assels

End of the Year $ 1,190,833

The aeeompanying noles are an inlegral part of this slatement
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Thompsor School District R2-J
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Fund
For The Year Ended June 30, 2011

Cash Flows from Operating Activilies
Cash Received from Cuslomers
Cash Payments o Suppliers [or Goods and
Services
Cash Payments to Employees [or Services

MNet Cash Used by Operating
Activilies

Cash Flows frem Nencapital Financing
Activities
Cash Received [romn Federal Government
Cash Received from State

Net Cash Provided by Non-capital Fmancing
Aclivilies

Cash Flows from [nvesting
Activities

Interest Received

Net Inerease in Cash and Cash
Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning
ol the Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End
ol the Year

The aecompanying notes are an inkegral part of lhis siatement
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Nutrition Serviees
Fund

1,828,348

(1,992,196)
(2,047,031)

{2,210.879)

2,360,024
72,360

2,432,384

598

222,104

524,508

746,612




Thompson Scheol District R2-J
Reconeiliation of Operating Loss To
Net Cash Used by Operating Activities
For the Year Ended June 30,2011

Reconciliation of Operating Loss 1o Net Cash
Used by Operating Activities

Operating Loss

Adjustments 10 Reeoncile Operating Loss 1o Nel
Cash Used by Operating Aclivities:
Depreciation
USDA Commaodities Food Used
Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Salaries
Decrease {Increase) in Inventory
Increase (Decrease) in Compensaled
Absences
[ncrease (Decrease} in Deferred Revenue

Net Cash Used by Operating Activilies

Non-cash Investing, Capital and Financing
Activities
Federal Aid:
Donaled Commodilies
Capital Assets Contributed by Other Funds

Total Non-cash Investing, Capital and Einanciog

Aclivities

‘The aceompanying noles are an integral part of Lhis stalement
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Nutrition Services
Fund

(2,493,844)

84,080
176,542

12,275
7,609
(5,640)

5,963
4,136

(2,210,879)

176,542
71,392

247,934




Thompson School District R2-J
Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities

As of June 30, 2011
Agency
Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,114,507
TOTAL ASSETS 1,114,507
LIABILITIES
Liabilities
Accounts Payable 35,137
Accrued Salaries and Benefils 1,093
Undistribuled Monies 1,078,277
TOTAL LTABILITIES 3 1,114,507

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this siatement
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Thompson School District R2-J
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2011

NOTE (1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of Thompson School District R2-J (District) have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (US
GAAP) as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
1s the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial
principles. The more significant of the District’s accounting policies are described below.

(A) Reporting Entity

In conformance with Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, Thompson
School District R2-J, Larimer County, Loveland, Colorado, is the reporting entity for financial
reporting purposes. The District ts the primary government financially accountable for all
activities of public school instruction within the geographical area organized as Thompson School
District R2-J. The District meets the criteria of a primary government: its Board of Education is
the publicly elected governing body; it is a legally separate entity; and it is fiscally independent.
The District is not included in any other governmental reporting entity.

The financial statements of the District include all funds that are controlled by or dependent upon
the Board of Education. Contro] by or dependence on the Board of Education is determined on
the basis of budget adoption, taxing authority, outstanding debt that may be secured by general
obligation of the District, and the responsibility of the District to finance debt or make subsidies
to funds.

Blended Component Unit:
Thompson School Facilities Corporation

The Thompson School Facilities Corporation (Corporation), a Colorado not-for-profit
corporation, was formed by the District solely for the purpose of acting as lessor, with the District
as lessee, to finance the acquisition and/or construction of certain facilities used in District
operations. The corporation has no financial activity other than debt payments included in the
District’s Capital Projects Fund, Therefore, the corporation 1s not separately presented in the
financial statements. The Corporation does not publish individual component unit financial
statements.

Discrete Component Units:

The District includes the New Vision Charter School and Thompson Education Foundation,
which is a nonprofit entity, (the “Entities™) within its reporting entity because the Entities are
fiscally dependent on the District or provide benefits exclusively to the Distnct and their
exclusion would render the District’s financial statements incomplete. Since the Entities have
separately elected boards, the balances and transactions of the Entities are discretely presented in
the financial statements. New Vision Charter School issues separate financial statements, which
can be obtained at the school, 2366 E. 1™ Street, Loveland, CO 80537.
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Thompson School District R2-J
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2011

(B) Fund Accounting

The District uses funds to report its financial position and results of operations. Fund accounting
is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by segregating
transactions related to certain government functions or activities. A fund is a separate accounting
entity with a setf-balancing set of accounts.

Funds are classified into three categories: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. FEach
category, in turn, is divided into separate “fund types.”

Governmental funds are used to account for all or most of a government’s general activities,
including the collection and disbursement of restricted or committed funds (special revenue
funds), and the servicing of general long-term debt (debt service funds). The following are the
District’s major governmental funds:

General Fund — The General Fund is the District’s general operating fund and is used to account
for all financial transactions except those required to be accounted for in another fund. Major
revenue sources include local property taxes, specific ownership taxes, and State of Colorado
equalization funding, as determined by the School Finance Act of 1994, as amended.

Expenditures include all costs associated with the daily operation of the schools, except for
programs funded by grants from federal and state governments, school construction, certain
capital outlay expenditures, debt service, food service operations, extracurricular athletic and
other pupil activities, payment of severance incentives and insurance transactions.

Government Designated-Purpose Grants Fund — This fund maintains a separate accounting for
programs funded by federal, state and local grants that normally have a different fiscal period
than that of the District.

Bond Redemption Fund - The Bond Redemption Fund is a debt service fund. This fund is used
to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt
principal, interest and related costs. The fund’s primary revenue source is local property taxes
levied specifically for debt service.

Building Fund — This fund accounts for the debt proceeds to be used to construct, renovate and
equip capital facilities.

Proprietary Funds focus on the determination of the changes in net assets, financial position and
cash flows and are classified as either enterprise or internal service.

Enterprise Funds may be used to account for any activity for which a fee is charged to external
users for goods or services. The District’s only enterprise fund is:

Nutritional Services Fund — This fund accounts for the financial transactions related to the food
service operations of the District.

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary fund reporting focuses on net assets and changes in net assets.
Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities} and do not involve measurement of
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Thompson School District R2-J
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2011

results of operations. The District has two agency funds, The Education Memorial Fund and
Interscholastic Athletic and Activity Fund.

{C) Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Financial Statements — The statement of net assets and the statement of
activities display information about the District as a whole. These statements include the
financial activities of the primary government except for fiduciary funds. Interfund services
provided and used are not eliminated in the process of consolidation. The statements distinguish
between those activities of the District that are governmental and those that are considered
business-type activities.

The government-wide statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting. This is the same approach used in the preparation of the
proprietary fund financial statements but differs from the manner in which governmental fund
financial statements are prepared. (Governmental fund financial statements therefore include
reconciliation with a brief explanation to better identify the relationship between the government-
wide statements and the statements for governmental funds.

The government-wide statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and
program revenues for each segment of the business-type activities of the District and for each
funection or program of the District’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are
specifically associated with a service, program or department and therefore clearly identifiable to
a particular function. Program revenues include charges paid by the recipient of the goods or
services offered by the program and grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues, which are not classified as
program revenues, are presented as general revenues of the District, with certain limited
exceptions. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to
which each business segments or governmental function is self-financing or draws from the
general revenues of the District.

Fund Financial Statements — Fund financial statements report detailed information about the
District. The focus of governmental and enterprise fund financial statements is on major funds
rather than reporting funds by type. Each major fund is presented in a separate column.
Nonmajor funds are aggregated and presented in a single column. Fiduciary funds are reported
by fund type.

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its
measurement focus. All governmental fund types are accounted for using a flow of curent
financial resources measurement focus. The financial statements for governmental funds are a
balance sheet, which generally includes only current assets and current liabilities, and a statement
of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances, which reports on the sources (i.e.,
revenues and other financing sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) of
current financial resources.

All proprietary fund types are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus.
With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operations of these
funds are included on the statement of net assets. The statement of revenues, expenses and
changes in fund net assets presents increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses} in net
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Thompson School District R2-J
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2011

total assets. The statement of cash flows provides information about how the District finances
and meets the cash flow needs of its proprietary activities.

(D) Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and
reported on the financial statements. Govermment-wide financial statements are prepared using
the accrual basis of accountmg. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Proprietary and fiduciary funds also use the accrual basis of accounting.

Revennes — Exchange and Non-exchange Transactions Revenues resulting from exchange
transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal value, are recorded on the
accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On a medified accrual basis, revenues are recorded
in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available. Available means
that the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected
scon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. For the District,
available means expected to be received within sixty days of fiscal year-end except for Grants for
which we use ninety days.

Neonexchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly giving equal
value in retum, include property taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On an accrual basis,
revenues from property taxes are recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. See
Note 3. State equalization monies are recognized as revenues during the period in which they are
appropriated. Revenues from grants, entitlements and donations are recognized in the fiscal year
in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing
requirements, which specify the year when the resources are required to be used or the fiscal year
when use is first permitted, matching requirements, in which the district must provide local
resources to be used for a specified purpose, and expenditure requirements, in which the
resources are provided to the District on a reimbursement basis. On a modified accrual basis,
revenue from nonexchange transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.
Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be both
measurable and available at fiscal year-end: property taxes collected within 60 days after year-
end, interest, tuition, grants and student fees.

Deferred Revenue Deferred revenues (modified accrual) anse when potential revenue does not
meet both the “measurable” and “available” critena for recognition in the current period of the
fund financial statements. Deferred revenues also arise when the District receives resources
before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant moneys are received prior to meeting eligibility
requirements (modified and full acerual). In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition
criteria are met, or when the District has a legal claim to the rescurces, the liability for deferred
revenue is removed and revenue is recognized.

Expenses/Expenditures On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time
they are incurred. The fair value of donated commodities used during the year is reported in the
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net assets as an expense with a like amount
reported as donated commodities revenue.
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Thompson School District R2-J
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2011

The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial
resources (expenditures) rather than expenses, Expenditures are generally recognized in the
accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred, if measurable. Allocations of
cost, such as depreciation and amortization, are not recognized in governmental funds.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s poncipal ongoing operations. Operating
expenses for enterprise funds include cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported
as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

(E) Cash, Cash Equivalents and Temporary Investments

Cash, cash equivalents, and temporary investments include cash on hand, demand deposits,
certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements, money market funds and participation in local
government investment pools.  All cash equivalents have an original maturity date of less than
three months.

Cash balances from different funds are combined and invested to the extent possible in local
government investment pools and repurchase agreements. Eamings from investments are
allocated to each fund based upon that fund’s share of the investment. Investments are stated at
fair value. The District generally holds investments until maturity.

(F) Short-term Interfund Receivables/Payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods
provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as internal balances
on the government-wide statement of net assets and, classified as due from other funds or due to
other funds on the balance sheet.

(G) Inventories

Nutntional Services Fund purchased inventories are stated at cost as determined by the first-in,
first-out (FIFO) method. Commodity inventories are stated at the USDA’s assigned values,
which approximate fair market value, at the date of receipt. Expenses for food items are recorded
when used. The federal government donates surplus commodities to supplement the National
School Lunch Program. Commodity contributions used by the District are recorded as non-
operating revenues at the date of their consumption.

{H) Capital Assets

General capital assets are those assets not specifically related to activities reported in the
proprietary funds, These assets generally result from expenditures in the govermmental funds.
These assets are reported in the governmental activities column of the government-wide
statement of net assets but are not reported in the fund financial statements. Capital assets
utilized by the proprietary funds are reported both in the business-type activities column of the
government-wide statement of net assets and in the respective fund financial statements.
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All capital assets are capitalized at cost {or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions
and retirements during the year. Donated capital assets are recorded at their fair market values as
of the date received. The District maintains a capitalization threshold of five thousand dollars.
The District does not possess any infrastructure, Improvements are capitalized; the cost of
normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the
asset’s life are not.

All reported capital assets are depreciated with the exception of land, water rights & construction-
in-progress. Improvements are depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital
assets. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Govemmental Business-Type

Activities Activities
Description Estimated Lives Estimated Lives
Land Improvements 20 Years N/A
Buildings and Improvements 10-50 Year N/A
Furniture and Equipment 5-20 Years 5-20 Years
Vehicles 8-15 vears 8-15 years

(I) Compensated Absences and Severance Incentive Benefit Amounts

Vacation benefits are accrued as a liability as the benefits are eamned if the employees’ rights to
receive compensation are attributable to services already rendered and it is probable that the
District will compensate the employees for the benefits through paid time off or payment at
separation of employment. The District records a liability for accumulated unused vacation time
when camed for all employees with more than one year of service. District policy allows
employees to accumulate only unused vacation earned since the beginning of the current school
year. For employees classified as administrators, twenty days of vacation may be carried over
from year to year with the approval of the Superintendent of Schools.

Upon separation, all certified employees are entitled to unused sick leave at the substitute teacher
daily rate. Unused sick leave is exchanged at the rate of one-half day for every day eamed up to
120 days beyend the 30 accrued days, acquired prior to the end of the 1993 fiscal year. However,
under the severance bonus plan, adopted in fiscal year 1993, teachers could choose a severance
plan that would allow payment for all sick leave eamed at one-half the substitute teacher daily
rate up to a combined total of 120 days. For classified staff, unused sick leave is exchanged at the
rate of one-half day for every day eamed up to 120 days beyond the 30 accrued days, acquired
prior to the end of the 1994 fiscal year.

The entire compensated absence liability is reported on the government-wide financial
statements. In proprietary funds, the entire amount of compensated absences is reported as a fund
liability. A liability is reported in the governmental funds only when payment is due.

During fiscal year 1993, the District initiated a severance bonus plan. Certified, ¢lassified and
administrative personnel could choose from a number of options and payment plans when
terminating from the District. Currently, payments under the severance plan are scheduled
through fiscal year 2017. The severance plan is structured to comply with the legal requirements
of Title X of the Colorado Constitution (also known as the Tabor Amendment). The District
budgets the subsequent year’s available resources for severance, severance incentive and eligible
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accumulated leave benefits. Therefore, the entire unpaid liability for early retirement and sick
leave paid upon retirement for governmental funds is reported on the government-wide financial
statements. Amounts for sick leave to be paid with the severance and early retirement bonus are
included in severance incentive stipends payable. The compensated absences balance is the
accrual for active employees. The amounts recorded as liabilities for all compensated absences
include salary-related payments associated with the payment of compensated absences, using the
rates in effect at the balance sheet date.

(J) Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide
financial statements. All payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations payable from
proprietary funds are reported on the proprietary fund financial statements.

In general, payables and accrued liabilities that will be paid from governmental funds are reported
on the governmental fund financial statements regardless of whether they will be liquidated with
available resources. However, claims and judgments, the noncurrent portion of capital leases,
compensated absences, and special termination benefits that will be paid from govemmental
funds are reported as a liability in the fund financial statements only to the extent that they will be
paid with available financial resources. Bonds and other long-term obligations that will be paid
from governmental funds are not recognized as a liability in the fund financial statements until
due.

(K) Fund Balance

Inn the fund financial statements, fund balance is restricted when constraints placed on the use of
resources are externally imposed.

In the fund statements, assigned fund balance is reported when the Board of Education intends to
use resources for a specific purpose but without a formal action. The Board of Education has
given management the authority to assign these fund balances. The District has not established a
formal policy for its use of restricted and unrestricted fund balance. However, if both restricted
and unrestricted fund balances are available, the District uses restricted fund balances first,
followed by assigned and unassigned balances.

(L) Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital
assets, net of related debt consist of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by
the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement
of those assets. Net assets are reported as restricted when there are liabilities imposed on their
use through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other
governments,

The District applies restricted resources first when an expense is incurred for purposes for which
both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available,
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(M) Interfund Transactions

Interfund services provided and used are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or expenses.
Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made
from it that are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the
reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed. All
other interfund transactions are reported as intertund transfers.

NOTE (2) Cash and Investments
(A) Deposits

The Colorade Public Deposit Protection Act (PDPA) requires that all units of local government
deposit cash in ¢ligible public depositories. Eligibility is determined by State regulations. At
June 30, 2011 the State regulatery commissioners had indicated that all financial institutions
holding deposits for the District are eligible public depositories. Amounts on deposit in excess of
federal insurance levels must be collateralized by eligible collateral as determined by the PDPA.
PDPA allows the financial institution to create a single collateral pool for all public funds held.
The pool is to be maintained by another institution, or held in trust for all the uninsured public
deposits as a group. The fair value of the collateral must be at least equal to 102% of the
uninsured deposits. At June 30, 2011, the District had deposits of $5,099 465 collateralized with
securities held by the financial institutions’ agents, but not in the District’s name.

(B) Investments

The District is required to comply with State statutes, which specify investment instruments
meeting defined rating, maturity, custedial and concentration rsk criteria in which local
governments may invest, which include the fellowing.

Obligations of the United States and certain U.S. Agency Securities

Certain international agency securities

General obligation and revenue bonds of U.S. local government entities
Bankers’ acceptances of certain banks.

Commercial paper

e Local government investment pools

e Written repurchase agreements collateralized by certain authorized securities
e Certain money market funds

Guaranteed investment contracts

Interest rate risk — The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing
interest rates. State statute generally limits investments to a maturity of five years from date of
purchase.

Credit Risk — State statates limit investments in U.S. Agency securities and commercial paper to

the highest rating issued by two or more nationally recognized statistical rating organizations
(NRSROs). State statutes lunit investments in money market funds to those that maintain a
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constant share price, with a maximum remaining maturity in accordance with Rule 2a-7, and
either have assets of one billion dollars or the highest rating issued by a NRSRO.

Concentration of Credit Risk — State statues generally do not limit the amount the district may
invest in a single issuer.

Custodial Risk — State statues require the collateral securities of repurchase agreements to be held
by the District’s custodian or a third-party trustee.

Local government investment pools — At June 30, 2011, the District had $59,417,571 invested in
the Colorado Local Government Liquid Asset Trust (Colotrust). The pool is an investment
vehicle established for local government entities in Colorado to pool surplus funds. The State
Securities Commissioner administers and enforces the requirements of creating and operating the
pool. ColoTrust operates in conformity with the Securities and Exchange Commissicns Rule 2a-
7 as promulgated under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended. The pool is rated
AAAm by Standard and Poor’s. Investments of the pool are limited to those allowed by State
statutes. A designated custodial bank provides safekeeping and depository services in connection
with the direct investment and withdrawal functions. The custodian’s intemnal records identify the
investments owned by the participating governments.

Trvestrrent Marities (n Years) Thonpson Al
Trvestrert Type Rating Iess then | 1-3 3+ BiFd  CtherRds Fair\ike
Mbney Mirket Funds ABA S 840 % - S -8 R4D 3 RAD
Mbney Market Finds AAN A /IS - - RIS - RIS
Local Coverrment Investrrent Pool AAAM P41757 - - . DA17571 RA17571
Gorporate Bords HB/AAF - 135436 12937 TR3ID - ]I
Gonrercial Paper Al 36136 - - - 6136 T61%
US Agercy Seauritics AAA - Ndt 488 %R - 1440
Muricipal Fonds AAAJA - - 1045 1245 - 12,45
5 @I 5 ASED S WA S GBS $ IR 5 QST

The Thompsen Education Foundation is a non profit entity with its own investment policy and is
not subject to state statute.

The following table is a reconciliation of cash and investments on the statement of net assets.

Cash on Hand h) 1,336
Cash and Deposits 3,975,041
[nvestments 60.665.594
Total $ 64,641,971
Statement of Net Assets:
Primary Government Cash and [nvestments § 62,450,195
Thompson Education Foundation Cash and Investments 1,077,269
Fiduciary Funds Cash and Investments 1.114.,507
Total $ 64641971
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NOTE (3) Receivables

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on January 1, are certified on December 15 and are
levied the following January 1. They are payable in fell by April 30 or are due in two equal
installments on February 28 and June 15, Lanimer, Weld and Boulder Counties bill and collect
property taxes for all taxing entities within each county. The property tax receipts collected by
the counties are remitted to the District in the subsequent month.

Receivables at June 30, 2011 consisted of taxes, accounts, and intergovernmental grants and

entitlements. All receivables are considered collectible in full due to the ability to foreclose for

the nonpayment of taxes, the stable condition of State programs, and the current year guarantee of
Federal funds.

A summary of the principal items of receivables follows:

General Fund

Property taxes - current and delinquent $ 3,223,563
Accounts receivable - other 16,609
3,240,172
Special Revenue Funds
Grants receivable 2,688,074
Debt Service Fund
Property taxes - current and delinquent /68.808
Total Govemmental Fund Receivables 4,008,980
Food Services Fund
Grants receivable 80.990
Total Primary Government Receivables 6,778,044

NOTE (4) Interfund Balances / Transfers

The General Fund temporarily covered the negative cash balance of the Government Designated-
Purpose Grants Fund in the amount of $179,851.

Interfund transfers at June 30, 2011, were composed of the following:

Transfer In Transfer OQut Amount
Major Funds:

Government Designated-Purpose Grants General h) 649,346
Sub-total 649,346

Non-Major Funds:
Fee Supported Programs General 431,026
Capital Projects General 3,154,574
Sub-total 3,585,600

Total 42 46
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The General Fund routinely subsidizes programs of the Fee Supported Fund. The General Fund
also transfers monies to the Grants Fund, which the majority of the monies are for Early
Childhood Special Education PPR and the balance are for matching programs. The General Fund
transfers monies to the Capital Projects Fund for certain capital outlay.

NOTE (5) Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, was as follows:

Capital Capital
Assets Deletions / Assets
July 1, 2010 Additions Transfers June 30, 2011

Gowernmental Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 14,810,666 $ - § - 5 14,810,666
Water Rights 1,050,000 80,500 - 1,130,500
Construction in Progress 21,193,974 1,876,850 (20,975,732) 2,005,092
Total capital assets, not

being depreciated 37,054,640 1,957,350 (20,975,732) 18,036,258
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land Improvements - 105,198 - 105,198
Buildings 204,438,976 20,024,805 - 224 463,781
Equipment 7,331,700 1,254,095 - 8,585,795
Transportation 10,915,717 771,023 (47.855) 11,644,885
Total capital assets, being depreciated 222,686,393 22,161,121 (47.855) 244,799 659
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Land Improvements - (5,260) - (5,260)

Buildings (69,916,647) (6,015,420) - (75,932,067)

Equipment (4,359,354) (908,302) - (5,267,656)

Transportation (7,939,808) (723,310) 47,855 (8,615,263)
Totalaccumulated depreciation (82,215,809) (7,652,292) 47,855 (89,820,246)
Total capital assets, being

depreciated, net 140,470,584 14,508,829 - 154,979,413
Govemmental Activities

Capital Assets, Net § 177,525,224 § 16466179 $ (20,975,732) $ 173,015,671
Business-Type Activities
Fumiture and Equipment ¥ 2,883251 Y 71,392 3 - 3 2,954 643
Less Accumulated Depreciation (2,496,159) (84,080) - (2,580,239)
Busmess-Type Activities

Capital Assets, Net $ 387,092 3 (12,688) A - 3 374,404
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Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2011 was charged to the following governmental
functions:
Instruction 4,208,761
Support Services
Pupil Services 478,268
Instructional Staff 459,138
General Administration 57,392
School Administration 382,615
Business Services 76,523
Maintenance/Operations 1,486,075
P upil Transportation 178,298
Central Supporting Services 229,569
Community Services 05,654
Total 7,652,292

NOTE (6) Accrued Salaries and Benefits

Salaries and benefits of certain contractually employed personnel are paid over a twelve-month
period from September to August, but are earned during a school year of approximately ten
months. The salaries and benefits eamed, but unpaid, at June 30, 2011, are estimated to be
$13,047,396. Accordingly, this accrued compensation is reflected as a liability in the
accompanying financial statements.

NOTE (7) General Obligation Bonds Payable

Table 1

On July 29, 2003, the District issued 325,660,000 in general obligation bonds. The bond
proceeds were used to refund the Series 1996. The first table is the remaining principal and
interest due from the portion of the 1996 Series Bonds, which were not refunded. The second
table identifies the remaining principal and interest due on the 2003 bond issue as of June 30,
2011. On December 20, 2005, the District issued $89,215,000 in general obligation bonds. Table
3 details the remaining principal and interest due on the 2005 bond issue as of June 30, 2011.

Series 1996 Deferred Inierest

Interest

Rate 5.4% t0 5.5%

Year ended June 30 Principal Interest Total
2012 3,101,430 3,823,570 6,925,000
2013 2,912,114 4,002,886 6.915.000
Totals $6,013.544 $7,826,436 $13,840.,000
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Table 2

Series 2003 A Refunding Bonds

Interest Rate 2.75% to 5.25%

Year Ended June 30, Principal Interest Total

2012 $ - $ 878,925 $ 878925
2013 - 878,925 878,925
2014 4,315,000 779,269 5,094,269
2015 4,550,000 591,238 5,141,238
2016 4,760,000 383,862 5,143,862
2017 5.045.000 132,431 5,177,431
Total $ 18,670,000 3 3644650 $22,314.650

Table 3

Senies 2005 Bonds

Interest Rate 4.00% to 5.00%

Year Ended June 30, Principal Interest Total

2012 $ 105000 $ 4417300 § 4,522,300
2013 130,000 4,412,600 4,542 600
2014 1,205,000 4,385,900 5,590,900
2015 1,300,000 4335150 5,635,150
2016 1,445,000 4272375 5,717,375
2017 1,600,000 4,196,250 5,796,250
2018 7,090,000 3,979,000 11,069,000
2019 7,570,000 3,612,500 11,182,500
2020 8,065,000 31221,625 11,286,625
2021 8,600,000 2,805,000 11,405,000
2022 9,160,000 2,361,000 11,521,000
2023 9,750,000 1,888,250 11,638,250
2024 10,340,000 1,386,000 11,726,000
2025 10,990,000 852,750 11,842,750
2026 11,560,000 289.000 11.849.000
Total $88.910,000 $46,414,700 §135,324.700

NOTE (8) Certificates of Participation

Certificates of Participation represent long-term lease purchase agreements for the acquisition of
capital items. Certificates of Participation (COP) are not considered bonded debt of the District
due to the structure of the lease and annual appropriation clause. The COPs are not considered to
be a general obligation or other indebtedness of the District within the meaning of any
constitutional or statutory debt limitations.
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On April 22, 2004, the Thompson School Facilities Corporation issued $4,485,000 of COPs. The
2004 COPs were issued to purchase the Thompson Learning Community, which houses the
District’s central administrative offices and a Community Leamning Center. The COPs carry
interest rates ranging from 1.85% to 4.50%. Annual lease payments will be made from the
Capital Reserve Fund.

The table below identifies the remaining principal and interest due on the 2004 COP issue as of
June 30, 2011.

Series 2004 Cenrtificates of Participation

Interest

Rate 1.85% to 4.50%

Year ended June 30, Principal Interest Total
2012 $ 200,000 132,964 3 332964
2013 200,000 125,714 325,714
2014 210,000 118,329 328,329
2015 220,000 109,906 329,906
2016 230.000 100,769 330,769
2017 235,000 91,351 326,351
2018 245,000 81,174 326,174
2019 255,000 70,460 325,460
2020 270,000 59,300 329,300
2021 280,000 47,335 327,335
2022 290,000 34,650 324,650
2023 305,000 21,262 326,262
2024 320,000 7.200 327.200
Total 3.2 00 $1,000.414 $4.260,414

NOTE (9) Capital Leases

Year Ending
June 30,
2012 hY 245,259
2013 245259
2014 245,259
2015 245,259
Amounts Representing Interest (104,857)
Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments $ 876,179

The district has a lease with Sun Trust Leasing Corporation, which was entered intc on
September 15, 2002 for the original amount of 32,233,253, Twelve annual payments of $245,259
began on July 1, 2003 through July 1, 2014. This lease 1s an energy performance contract. The
payments are guaranteed from annual energy savings by replacing equipment with more energy
efficient units. This contract is guaranteed by Siemen Building Technologies. Payments are
made from the Capital Projects Fund, based on a transfer from the General Fund energy budget.
No assets were capitalized as items did not meet District’s capitalization policy.
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NOTE (10) Changes in Long-Term Debt

(A) Summary

The following is a summary of the changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 201 1:

Governmental activities:
Bonds Payable (principal)
Premium Bond Issuance ‘05
Premium Bond Issuance 03
Bond Reissuance Loss '03
Accrued Interest 1996
Certificates of Participation

Capital Lease Obligations Payable

Compensated Absences*

Severance-[ncentive Payable*

Total
Business-type activities:
Compensated Absences

Amount Due

June 30, 2010 Additions Deletions June 30,2011 in One Year

§ 116969738 3 - $ 3,376,194 $ 113,593,544 $ 3,206,431
3,768,541 251,235 3,517,306
1,020,388 145,769 874,619

(1,414,999 - (202,143 (1,212,856) -

10,293,642 633,824 3,603,806 7,323,660 3,823,570

3,450,000 190,000 3,260,000 200,000

1,071,301 - 195,122 876,179 204,254

510,288 742,887 751,901 501,274 280,000

6,065,845 1,911,262 1,855,244 6,121,863 1,923,201

$§ 141734744 § 3287973 $ 10,167,128 $ 134,855,589 § 9,637,456

$ 15350  § 14,384 $ 8,421 $ 21,313 $ 4,500

* The General Fund liquidates compensated absences and the severance incentive stipend

payable.

(B) Annual Requirements

Listed below are the annual requirements to amertize all long-term debt at June 30, 2011:

General Capital Severance
Year Ending Obligation Lease/COP Compensated Incentive
June 30, Bonds Obligations Absences Stipends Toral

2012 $ 12,326,225 $ 578,223 $ - $ 1,923,201 $ 14,827,649
2013 12,336,525 570,972 - 1,621,490 14,528,987
2014 10,685,169 573,587 - 1,160,811 12,419,567
2015 10,776,388 575,164 - 779,528 12,131,080
2016 10,861,238 330,769 - 462,999 11,655,006
2017-2021 55,916,805 1,634 621 - 173,834 57,725,260
2022-2026 58,577,000 978,113 - - 59,555,113
Dug in agcordance
with District leave
policies 501,274 - 501,274
Less amounts
representing
interest {57,885,800) (1,105,270) (58,991,076)
Principal Due $113,593 544 $4.136,179 $ 501,274 $6,121.863 $124 352,860
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NOTE (11) Defined Benefit Pension Plan
(A) Plan Description

The District contributes to the School Division Trust Fund (SDTF), a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Public Employees’ Retirement
Association of Colorado (PERA). SDTF provides retirement and disability, annual increases and
death benefits for members or their beneficiaries. All employees of the District are members of
the SDTF. Title 24, Article 51 of the Colorado Revised Statutes (CRS), as amended, assigns the
authority to establish benefit provisions to the State Legislature. PERA issues a publicly
available annual fmancial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information for SDTF. That report may be obtained by writing to PERA of Colorado, 1301
Pennsylvania Street, Denver, Colorado 80203 or by calling PERA at 303-832-9550 or 1-800-759-
PERA (7372).

(B) Funding Policy

The contribution requirements of plan members and the District are established under Title 24,
Article 51, Part 4 of the CRS, as amended. The contribution rate for members was 8%. The
District’s contrnibution rate for calendar years 2009, 2010 and 2011 was 12.95%, 13.85% and
14.75% of covered salaries, respectively. A portion of the District’s contribution (1.02% of
covered salaries) is allocated to the Health Care Trust Fund {See Note 12). The District’s
contributions to SDTF for the years ending June 30, 2011, 2010, and 2009 were $10,953,425,
$10,297,588 and $9,398,654, respectively, equal to their required contributions for each year.

NOTE (12) Postemployment Healthcare Benefits
{A) Plan Description

The District contributes to the Health Care Trust Fund (HCTF), a cest-sharing multiple-employer
postemployment healthcare plan administered by the PERA. The HCTF provides a health care
premium subsidy to PERA participating benefit recipients and their eligible beneficiaries. Title
24, Anticle 51, Part 12 of the CRS, as amended, assigns the authority to establish the HCTF
benefit provisions to the State Legislature. PERA issues a publicly available annual financial
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the HCTF.

That report may be obtained by writing to PERA of Colorado, 1301 Pennsylvania Street, Denver,
Colorado 80203 or by calling PERA at 303-832-9550 or 1-800-759-PERA (7372).

(B) Funding Policy

The District is required to contribute at a rate of 1.02% of covered salary for all PERA members
as set by statute. No member contributions are required. The contribution requirements for the
District are established under Title 24, Article 51, Part 4 of the CRS, as amended. The
apportionment of the contribution to the HCTF is established under Title 24, Article 51, Section
208 of the CRS, as amended. The District’s apportionment to HCTF for the years ending June
30,2011, 2010, 2009 was $780,937, $782,270, and $766,240 respectively.
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NOTE (13) Risk Management
(A) Colorado School District Self Insurance Pool

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; etrors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District has
joined together with other districts to participate in the Colorado School Districts Self Insurance
Pool (CSDSIP), a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and
insurance program for school districts. Participation in CSDSIP is approved by and managed
under regulations promulgated by the Colorado State Insurance Division of Regulatory Agencies.
The District pays an annual premium to CSDSIP for its general property and liability insurance
coverage. CSDSIP is self-sustaining through member premiums and currently carries reinsurance
for property claims in excess of $1,000,000 and for liability claims in excess of $500,000.

The Colorado Governmental Immunity Act limits the types of lability claims that can be brought
against a school district and the amount of monetary damages that a school district might be
ordered to pay. The maximum amount that can be recovered for an injury involving one person
in any single occurrence is $150,000. The maximum amount that is recoverable for a singie
occurrence involving two or more people 1s $600,000.

The District’s contribution to CSDSIP is funded by premium contributions through a transfer
from the General Fund to the Capital Reserve Fund. The fund is also used to cover the purchase
of commercial insurance for workers® compensation coverage and other types of coverage not
provided in the pool agreement; to partially fund salaries and other service costs for risk
management and loss control (deductibles, security contracts, medical evaluation, controlled
substance and alcohol testing, etc.). Settled claims resulting {rom these misks have not exceeded
commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three years. Complete financial statements for
CSDSIP can be obtained from CSDSIP, 6857 South Spruce Street, Centennial, Colorado 80112.

(B) Centennial Board of Cooperative Educational Services (CBOCES)

The District participates in the Centennial Beard of Cooperative Educational Services
{(CBOCES), along with St. Vrain, Park and several smaller districts in Weld County. CBOCES
provides data processing services, teacher education, provides research and development for
member’s districts. The District is not responsible for deficits nor is the District entitled to
operating surplus, The Distnict has no moral or other responsibility for debt. The amount
contributed is based upon the number of students enrolled in each district. During the 2010-11
fiscal year, the contnbution was approximately 6% for administrative, operations and support
provided by CBOCES. Complete financial statements can be obtained from CBOCES, 2020
Clubhouse Drive, Greeley, CO 80634,

The District made a $117,069 contribution to CBOCES during fiscal year 2010-11.
NOTE (14) Commitments and Contingencies
(A) Litigation
The Distoct is involved in several pending lawsuits. The District estimates that the potential

claims against it resulting from such litigation and not covered by insurance would not materially
affect the financial statements of the District.
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(B) Grants and State Funding

The District participates in a number of Federal and State assisted grant programs. The
disbursement of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with terms
and conditions specified in the grant agreements and are subject to audit by the grantor agencies.
Any disallowed claims resulting from such audits could become a liability of the General Fund or
other applicable funds. However, in the opinion of management, any such disallowed claims will
not have a material affect on the financial statements of the District at June 30, 2011,

(C) TABOR Amendment

Colorado voters passed an amendment Lo the State Constitution, Article X, Section 20, which has
several limitations, including revenue raising, spending abilities and other specific requirements
of state and lecal governments. The Amendment is complex and subject to judicial interpretation.

In November 2000, voter approval was given to the District to remove the restriction on growth
in revenue effective beginning the fiscal year ended June 30, 2000. At June 30, 2011, the District
has complied with the requirements to establish emergency reserves that are recorded in the
financial statements as a restricted fund balance.

NOTE (15) Reclassification

For the year ended June 30, 2011, the School adopted the standards of Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions. As a result, the Severance Incentive Fund, and Interscholastic Athletic & Activity
Fund were merged with the General Fund and the Thompson School Facilities Corporation Fund
was merged with the Capital Projects Fund for reporting purposes, as follows.

Severance Athletic &
General Incentve Activity Total

Fund Balances fune 30,2010 as originally stated  § 25258446  § 186,167 § Lo8 § 25554731

Merger 296,285 (186,167) (110,118) -
Fund Balances June 30, 2010 as restated $ 2554731 8 - $ - § 23,554.731
Thompson

Capital School Facilities

Projects Corporation Total
Fund Balances June 30, 2010 as crignally stated $ 2,161,879 $ 336,136 § 2498015
Merger 336,136 (336,136) -
Fund Balances June 30, 2010 as restated $ 2498015 $ - $ 2498015
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

These financial statements present more detailed information, such as budget to actual
companisons for the individual funds in a format that segregates information by major fund type
and non-major funds.



GENERAL FUND

The General Fund accounts for all transactions of the District not required to be accounted for in
other funds. This fund represents an accounting for the District’s ordinary operations financed
primarily from property taxes and state aid. It is the most significant fund in relation to the
District’s overall cperations.
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Revenue

Taxes
Local Property- School Finance Act
Local Property- Mill Levy Override
Specific Ownership

Inlergovernmenial
Equalization Entitlements
Speeial Education
Vocational Education
Transportation
Other Federal Grants
Other

Invesiment Eamings

TOTAL REVENUE

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess revenues over expenditures
Other Financing Sources {Uses)
Transfers Out:
Governmental Designaled-Purpose
Granls Fund
Fee Supported Programs Fund
Capital Reserve Fund

Total Cther fFinancing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balanee

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

See independem audilor's report

Thompson School District R2-J
General Fund - 10
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Aetual (Negative)
s 30228419 h) 30,107,713 5 31,039,495 $ 931,782
13,170,517 13,176,517 13,419,450 248,933
3,855,767 3,647,174 3,853,468 206,294
60,823,714 56,985,336 57,404,922 419,586
2.656,359 2,656,359 2945718 289,359
475,000 475,000 511,729 36,729
834,068 834,068 972,871 138.803
- 3,816,946 3,892,585 75,639
962,000 962,000 1,435,156 473,156
75,250 75,250 53,806 (21,444)
113,081,004 112,730,363 115,529,200 2,798,837
114,221,808 115,025,871 107,121,965 7,903,906
(1,140,714) (2,295,508) 8,407,235 10,702,743
(658,606) (658.,606) (649,346) 9.260
(431,026) (431,026) (431,026) -
{3,154,574) (3,154,574) {3,154,574)
(4,244,206) (4,244,206) {4,234,946) 8,260
$ (5,384,920) % (6,539,714) 4,172,289 h) 10,712,003
25,554,731
$ 29,727,020
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Thompson School District R2-J
General Fund - 10
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Yariance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Expenditures
Instruction:
Salaries and Benelils 3 61,122,773 3 61,128,706 $ 57,407,598 $ 3,721,108
Purchased Serviees 2,013,341 2,250,405 1,459,570 790,835
Supplies and Malerials 3,590,975 3,854,714 1,613,136 1,941,578
Other 119975 119,975 119,936 3G
Total Instruction 66,847,064 67,353,800 60,900,240 6,453,560

Supporting Serviees
Pupit Services 5,325,243 5308415 6,956,284 (1,647,869
Instructional Staff 9,625,567 9,697,563 8,561,414 1,136,151
General Administration 042 467 1,007,344 764,778 242,566
School Administration 7.825,393 7,938,795 7,508,858 429,637
Business Services 2,467,703 2,436,041 2,067,520 368,521
Mainlenance/Operations 11,020,442 11,195,622 10,203,833 991,789
Pupil Transponation 3,690,532 3,690,532 3,528.424 162,108
Central Supporling Services 3119318 3,318,708 2,654,360 664,348
Community Services - - 510,356 {(510.356)
Charter School 2,757,390 2,757,390 2,747,307 10,083
Total Supporting Services 47,074,085 47,350,412 45,503,134 1,847.279

Capital Qullay 300,659 321,659 718,591 (396,932)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 114,221,808 $ 115,025,871 $ 107,121,965 $ 7,903 906

See independent audilor's report
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GOVERNMENT DESIGNATED PURPOSE
GRANTS FUND

The Government Designated-Purpose Grants Fund maintains the accounting for programs funded
by federal, state and local grants that normally have a different fiscal period than that of the
District.
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Revenue

Intergovernmental
Federal Sourees
Stale/Local Sources

[nvestment Earnings

TOTAL REVENUE

Expenditures
Instruction
Salaries and Benefits
Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Equipment
Other Expenditures
Total [nstruction
Support Services
Pupi] Services
Instructional Staff
School Admimistration
Mainlenance/Operations
Pupil Transportalion
Community Services
Total Support Services

Total Expenditures

Excess Revenues Over/(Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfer In

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balanees - Beginning of Year

Fund Balances - End of Year

See independent audiler's report

Thompson School District

Government Designated Purpose Grants Fund - 22 & 28

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Budget Actual (Negarive)

i) 8,548,546 % 8,548,546 8822493 % 273,947
636,984 636,984 488,240 {148,744)

- - 1,445 1,445
9,185,530 9,185,530 9,312,178 126,648
4,668,930 4,668,930 5,041,392 (372,462)
105,516 105,516 134,396 (28,880)
299,671 299,671 395,578 (95,907)
58,652 58,652 82,380 (23,728)
178,186 178,186 - 178,186
5,310,955 5,310,955 5,653,746 (342,791}
2,940,158 2,940,158 2,164,949 775,209
939,850 939,850 1,140,848 (200,999)
526,549 526,549 527,109 (560)
12,877 12,377 100,767 (87,890)
22.591 22,591 11,206 11,385
91,156 91,156 88,703 2,453
4,533,181 4,533,181 4,033,583 469,598
9,844,136 9,844,136 9,687,129 156,307
{658,606) (658,606) (375.151) 283,455
658 606 658,606 649,346 (9,260)

b ) - 274,195 $ 274,195

345,914
620,109
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Thompson School District R2-J
Notes to Required Supplementary Information
June 30, 2011

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The District adheres to the following procedures in compliance with Colorado Revised
Statutes, establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

1) Budgets are required by state law for all funds. Prior to May 31, the
Supenintendent of Schoels submits to the Board of Education a proposed budget
for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The budget includes
proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

2} Public hearings are conducted by the Board of Education to obtain taxpayer
comments.

3) Prior to June 30, the budget is adopted by formal resolution.

4) Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the fund level.
Authorization to transfer budgeted amounts between departments within any
fund and reallocation of budget line items within any department in the General
Fund rests with the Superintendent of Schools, or department directors.
Revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the
Board of Education.

5) Budgets for all funds are adopted on a basis consistent with US GAAP, with
the exception of the Nutritional Services. The Nutritional Services Fund

budgets for capital outlay and not for depreciation expense.

©) Appropnations lapse at year-end.
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COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES

These financial statements present more detailed information, such as budget to actual
comparisons for the individual funds in a format that segregates information by major fund type
and non-major funds.
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DEBT SERVICE FUND

The District has one debt service fund, the Bond Redemption Fund. This fund is used to account
for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, long-term debt principal, interest and
related costs. This fund’s primary revenue sources are local property taxes levied specifically for

debt service.
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Thompson School District R2-J
Bond Redemption Fund - 31
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Actual Yariance with
Amounts Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Budget Positive
Original Final Basis (Negative)
Revenue
Local Property Taxes A 12,328 325 b 12,328,325 $ 12,532,757 $ 204,432
Invesiment Earnings 5,000 5,000 25,731 20,731
TOTAL REVENUE 12,333,325 12,333,325 12,558,488 225,163
Expenditures
Other Charges 5,000 5,000 - 5,000
Debt Serviee:
Pringipal retirement 3,376,194 3,376,194 3,376,194
Interest and Fiseal Charges 8,904,231 8,904,231 8,904,231
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 12,285,425 12,285,425 12,280,425 5,000
Net Change in Fund Balance b 47,900 % 47,900 278,063 h) 230,163
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 13,488,987
Fund Balance - End of Year b 13,767,050

See independent auditor's report
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

The Building Fund accounts for the debt proceeds to be used to construct, renovate and equip
capital facilities.
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Revenue
Investment Eamings

Expenditures
Project Adminisiration
New or Addition lo Schools
Mainlenance Projects
Technology Projects
Arbitrage Obligation

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning of the Year

Fund Balanee - End of the Year

See independent audilor's report

b

Thompson School District R2-J

Building Fund - 41

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Actual Variance with
Amounts Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Budget Positive
Original Final Basis (Negative)
6,500 $ 6,500 4,621 3 (1,87%)
314,500 314,500 275,701 38,799
2,659,175 2,659,175 1,579,973 1,079,202
4,423,197 4,423,197 1,151,527 3,271,670
60,090 60,090 29328 30,762
49,000 49,000 49,000
7,505,962 7,505,962 3,036,529 4,409,433
(7499,462) 3 £7.499,462) (3.031,908) $ 4,467,554
5,691,530
2,659,622
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NON-MAJOR FUNDS

The District has the following Non-major Funds;

Land Reserve Fund

This fund is provided to maintain a separate accounting for cash in lieu of land dedication assessed on
newly constructed homes that have an impact on the District’s financial resources. This revenue is to
provide facilities for learning due to the increased amount of student population.

Fee Supported Programs Fund
This fund 1s used to account for programs that are financed primarily through user fees and tuition.

Capital Projects Fuud
This fund is used to fund ongeing capital needs such as site acquisitions, building additions, equipment
purchases and technology. Funding is provided by a transfer from the General Fund.
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ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities
Acceunts Payable
Retainage Payable
Accrued Salanics and Benefils

Total Liabilities
Fund Balances

Restricled for TABOR
Resmieted for Debt Scrvice
Restricted for Land & Land Improvemcnis
Assigned for Student Specific Programs
Assigned for Capital Projects

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balanees

Sce independent auditor's report

Thompson School District R2-J
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

June 30, 2011
Fee Total Nonmajor
Land Supported Capital Governmental
Reserve Programs Projeets Funds
$ 1,033,920 s 1,465,765 2,275,849 3 4,775,534
$ 1,033,920 $ 1,465,765 2,275,849 A 4,775,534
§ - $ 24,751 228,048 b 252,799
- - 37,501 37,501
- 100,016 - 100,016
- 124,767 265,549 390,316
7,331 - - 7,331
- - 336,136 336,136
1,026,589 - - 1,026,589
- 1,340,998 - 1,340,998
- - 1,674,164 1,674,164
1,033,920 1,340,998 2.010.300 4,385,218
5 1,033,920 $ 1,465,765 2,275,849 3 4,775,534
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Revenue
Inveslment earnings
Other

TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Instruction
Salaries and Benelits
Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Equipment
Other Expendilures
Total Instruetion
Suppori Services
Pupil Services
Instructional Staif
Sehool Administration
Business Services
Maintenance/Qperations
Pupil Transportation
Central Supporiing Services
Community Serviees
Debt Service - Principal
Debt Service - Interest
Total Support Services

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Exeess (Deficieney) of Revenues
{rver Expenditures

Other Finaneing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in

Net Change in Fund Balanees
Fund Balances - Beginning of the Year

Fund Balances - End of the Year

See independent audilor's repon

Thompson School District R2-J
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30,2011

Fee Total Nonmajor
Land Supported Capital Governmeutal
Reserve Programs Projects Funds

h) 1,535 $ 1,707 18,562 H) 21,804
242,816 1,520,077 16,828 1,779,721
244351 1,521,784 35,390 1,801,525

- 575859 - 575,859

- 16,559 150,138 167,697

- 180,707 34,511 215,218

- 15,861 118,771 134,632

- 21,949 - 21,949

- 810,935 304 420 1,115,355

- 14,705 - 14,705

- 30,646 835,422 866,068

- 59,685 - 59,685

- 89,346 - 89346

; . 912,307 912,307

- - 792,291 792,291

190,197 - 257,941 448,138

- 748,985 - 748,985

- - 385,122 385,122

- - 190,176 190,176

190,197 943,367 3,373,259 4,506,823
190,197 1,754,302 3,677,679 5,622,178
54,154 (232,518} (3,642,289} (3,820,653)

- 431,026 3,154,574 3,585,600
54,154 198,508 {487.715) (235,053)
979,766 1,142,490 2,498,015 4,620,27]

$ 1,033,920 $ 1,340,998 2,010,300 % 4385218




Revenue
Investment Eamings

Payments in lieu of Land Dedication

TOTAL REVENUE

Expenditures
Support Serviecs
Central Supporting Services
TOTAL EXPERDITURES
Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

See independent anditor's report

Thompson School District R2-J
Laod Reserve Fund - 27
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Year Ended June 30, 2011
Variance with
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
1,500 $ 1,500 $ 1,535 35
191,000 191,000 242,816 51,816
192,500 192,500 244 351 51,851
1,113,000 1,113,000 190,197 922,803
1,113,000 1,113,000 190,197 922,803
(920,500 $ {920,500) 54,154 974,634
979,766
b 1,033,920
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Thompson Schoel District R2-J
Fee Supported Programs Fund - 29
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenue

Charges for Services h) 1,554,100 3 1,554,100 £ 1,520,077 h) (34,023)

Investment Earnings - - 1,707 1,707

TOTAL REVENUE 1,554,100 1,554,100 1,521,784 (32,3106)
Expenditures
[nstruction

Salaries and Benefits 666,710 666,710 575,859 90,851

Purchased Services 15,500 15,500 16,559 (1,059)

Supplies and Marerials 252,095 252,095 180,707 71,388

Equipment 48,535 81,035 15,861 65,174

Other Expenditures - - 21,949 (21,949

Total Instruction 982,840 1,015,340 810,935 204,405

Suppon Services

Pupil Services - - 14,705 (14,705)

Instructional Staff - - 30,646 (30,646)

School Administration 78,200 78,200 59,685 18,515

Business Services 156,000 156,000 89,346 66,654

Community Services 845912 845912 748,985 96,927

Total Suppon Services 1,080,112 1,080,112 943,367 136,745

TOTAL EXPERDITURES 2,062,952 2,095,452 1,754,302 341,150
Excess of Revenues Over (Under)

Expenditures (508,852) (541,352) {232,518) 308,834
COther Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 431,026 431,026 431,026 -
Net Change in Fund Balance $ (77.826) % {110,326) 198,508 8 308,834
Fund Balance - Beginning of the Year 1,142,490

Fund Balance - End of the Year b 1,340,998

See independent auditor's report
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Revenue
Investment Earnings
Other

TOTAL REVENUE

Expenditures
[nslruction
Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Equipment
Total Instruction

Support Services
Instruetional Staff
Maintenance/Operations
Pupil Transportation
Central Supporting Services
Principal Payments
Interest Paymenls
Tolal Support Services
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
Excess revenues over (under) expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfer [n

Trans{er Oul

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year
Fund Balance - End of Year

See independenl audilor's report

$

Thompson School District R2-J
Capital Projects Fund - 43
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance with
Final Budget

62

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

3 - 18,562 3 18,562

- 16,828 16,828

- 35,390 35,390
- - 151,138 {151,138}
. - 34511 (34,511}
147,000 147,000 118,771 28,229
147,000 147,000 304,420 {157,420)
800,315 800,315 835422 (35,107
2,961,750 2,961,750 912,307 2,049,443
325,000 325,000 792,291 (467,291
568,500 568,500 257,941 310,559
162,499 162,499 385,122 (222,623)
82,760 82,760 190.176 (107,416)
4,900,824 4,900,824 3,373,259 1,527,565
5,047,824 5,047,824 3.677,679 1,370,145
(5,047,824) (5.,047.824) (3,642,289) 1,405,535
4,179,574 4,179,574 3,154,574 (1,025,000)
(1,025,000) {1,025,000) - 1,025,000

3,154,574 3,154,574 3,154,574 -
(1893250) & {1,893,250) (487.715)  $ 1,405,535
2,498,015
2,010,300
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ENTERPRISE FUND

Proprietary funds are used to account for activities that penerate net income or maintain capital.
While US GAAP used to prepare the financial statements at year-end are comparable to those
found in private business, these funds are budgeted like governmental fund types. The main
difference between financial reporting and budgeting is that the depreciation of assets is recorded
for financial reporting purposes but is not budgeted. Capital asset acquisitions are budgeted as an
expense, but are classified as an asset for financial reporting purposes. One type of proprietary
fund is an enterprise fund.

Enterprise funds account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private enterprises, where the cost of providing goods or services to the general public is financed
or recovered primarily by user charges.

The District has one enterprise fund, the Nutrition Services Fund.

This fund accounts for all financial activities associated with the district school breakfast and

lunch programs. Funding is provided by sales to pupils and intergovernmental revenue from the
United States Department of Agriculture.
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Thompson School District R2-J
Nutrition Services Fund - 51
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Year Euded June 30, 2011

Yariance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Operating Revenue
Food Sales and Catering Sales h) 2,124,661 S 2,124,661 3 1,824,212 h) (300,449)
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 2,124,661 2,124,661 1,824,212 (300,449)
Operating Expenses
Salaries and Benefits 2,289,150 2,289,150 2,060,603 228,547
Purchased Serviees 88.000 88,000 82,575 5,425
Supplies and Malerials 2,089,000 2,089,000 2,077,857 11,143
Equipment 15,000 15,000 14,941 39
Other 112,500 112,500 - 112,500
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 4,593,650 4,593,650 4,235,976 157,674
Operating Income {Loss) (2,468,989) (2,468,989) (2.411,764) 57,225
Non-Operating Revenue {Expenses)
Federal Aid:
USDA Reimbursements 2,300,000 2,300,000 2363410 63,410
Commodities 211,000 211,000 176,542 {34,458)
State Categorical Reimbursement 40,000 40,000 72,360 32,360
Interest Earnings - - 598 568
TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUE 2,551,000 2,551,000 2612910 651,910
Change in Net Assets, Budgetary Basis $ 82,011 h) 82,011 201,146 3 119,135
Less: Depreciation Expense (84,080)
Capital Contobuuons 71,392
Change in Net Assets, GAAP Basis 188,458
Net Assets - Beginning of the Year 1,002,375
Net Assets - End of the Year § 1,190,833

See independent auditor's report
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FIDUCIARY FUND TYPE

Fiduciary Funds — Fiduciary fund reporting focuses on net assets and changes in net assets. The
fiduciary fund category is split into four classifications: pension trust funds, investment trust
funds, private-purpose trust funds and agency funds. Trust funds are used to account for assets
held by the District under a trust agreement for individuals, private organizations, or other
governments and are therefore not available to support the District’s own programs. The District
does not have any trust funds. Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal habilities) and
do not involve measurement of results of operations. The District has two agency funds; The
Education Memorial Fund and the Interscholastic Athletic and Activity Fund.
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ASSETS
Cash and Investments

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable

Accrued Salanies and Benefits

Undistributed Monies

TOTAL LIABILITES

See independenl auditor's report

Thompson School District R2-J
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

June 30, 2011
Education [nterscholastic

Memorial Athletic and Activity Totals
3 74,677 $ 1,039,830 1,114,507
$ 74,677 & 1,039,830 1,114,507
5,085 30,052 35,137
- 1,093 1,093
69,592 1,008,685 1,078,277
$ 74,677 ) 1,039,830 1,114,507
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Thompson School District R2-J
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Agency Funds
For the Year Ended Juue 30, 2011

Balance Balance
June 30, 2010 Additions Delerions June 30, 2011
Education Memorial
Assels
Cash and Investments b 67,379 $ 60,413 b 53,115 h 74,677
Liabilities
Accounts Payable 3 - $ 5,085 3 - g 5,085
Undisiributed Monies 67,3719 60,413 58,200 69,592
Total Liabilities h) 67379 $ 65,498 $ 58,200 § 74,677
Interseholastic Athletie and Aetivity
Assets
Cash and Investmenls $ 1,008,914 $ 2,723,130 3 2,692,214 $ 1,039,830
Liabilities
Accounis Payable b 58,204 $ - $ 28,152 3 30,052
Accrued Salaries and Benefils 190 903 - 1,093
Undistributed Monics 950,520 2,722,227 2,664,062 1,008,685
Total Liabiliries h) 1,008,914 $ 2,723,130 h 2,692,214 b 1,039,830
Combined
Assets
Cash and Investiments i) 1,076,293 $ 2,783,543 £ 2,745,329 b 1,114,507
Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 58,204 $ 5,085 $ 28,152 $ 35,137
Accrued Salaries and Benefils 190 903 - 1,093
Undistributed Monies 1,017.899 2,782,640 2,722,262 1,078,277
Total Liabilities $ 1,076,293 $ 2,788,628 $ 2,750,414 $ 1,114,507

See independent auditor's report
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Additions
Invesmment Earnings
Other Revenue
Total Additions
Deductions
Other Trust Expense
Total Deductions
Change in Undistributed Monies
Undistributed Monies - Beginning of Year

Undistributed Monies - End of Year

See independenl auditor's report

Thompson School District R2-J
Education Memorial Fund - 72
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Ycar Ended June 30, 2011

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
200 i3 200 - (200)
35,000 35,000 60,413 25413
35,200 35,200 60,413 25,213
84,250 84,250 58,200 26,050
84,250 84,250 58,200 26,050
{49,050} % (49,050) 2,213 51,263
67.379
69,592
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Thompson School District R2-J
Interscholastic Athletic and Activity Fund - 74
Budgetary Comparison Schedules
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Criginal Final Actual (Negative)
Additious
Fund Raising and Events 5 2,835,000 $ 2,835,000 $ 2,721,419 $ (113,581}
Investmenl Eamnings 300 300 1,043 743
Total Additions 2,835,300 2,835,300 2,722,462 (112,838)
Deductions
Athletic Expeuditures 962,100 G62,100 855,200 106,900
Pupil Activity Expenditures 1,918,150 1,918,150 1,809,097 106,053
Total Deductious 2,880,250 2,880,250 2,664,297 215,953
Change in Undistributed Monies h) (44,950) % (44,950} 58,165 $ 103,115
Undistributed Monies Beginning of the Ycar 950,520
Undistributed Monies End of The Year $ 1,008,685

See independent auditor's report
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COMPONENT UNITS

Component Units are legal separate entities for which the primary government is financially
accountable. Certain legal and organizational structures such as charter schools and foundations
may result in an entity apart from, although cennected to, the school district. When this happens
the financial transactions of the charter school or foundation 1s usually not included in the school
district’s financial transaction database for normal day to day operations. However, districts are
required to include the activity for revenues and expenditures in the financial statement
presentation.

Thompsen School District’s component units consist of one charter school administrative unit:

New Vision Charter School and Thompson Education Foundation. These entities have separate
governing boards.
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Thempson School District R2-J
Combining Statement of Net Assets
Component Units

As of June 30, 2011
Thompson Total
New Vision Education Component
Charter School Foundation Units
ASSETS
Cash and Investments $ 855,267 g 1,077,269 3 1,932,536
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 546,798 - 546,798
Receivables 1,757 - 1,757
Prepaid Expense 555,000 - 555,000
Debt Issuance Costs, Nel of Accumulaled Depreciation 156,309 - 159,309
Capual Assels, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 3,491,772 - 3,491,772
Total Assets $ 5,609,903 $ 1,077,269 $ 6,687,172
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 3 5314 A 3,718 A 9,032
Accrued Salaries and Benefits 95,234 - 95234
Accrued Interest Payable 81,465 - 81,465
Total Current Liabilities 182,013 3,718 185,731
Noncurrent Liabilities
Due Within One Year 53,586 53,586
Due in More Than One Year 4,749,785 - 4,749,785
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 4,803,371 - 4,803,371
Total Liabilities 4,985,384 3,718 4,989,102
NET ASSETS
[nvested in Capital Assets, Nct of Related Debt (1,311,599) - (1,311,599)
Restricted for Debt Service 483,386 - 483,386
Restricted for Repairs and Replacement 63,412 - 63,412
Restricled for Emergencies 100,072 - 100,072
Unresiricted 1,289,248 1,073,551 2,362,799
Total Net Assets 624,519 1,073,551 1,698,070
Total Liabililies and Net Assets $ 5,609,903 $ 1,077,269 % 6,687,172

See independent audilor's report
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Expenses
Total Instruction
Total Suppon Serviees
Interest Expense
Total Expenses
Program Revenues
Charges for Services
Operating Grants and Coninbutions
Total Program Revennes
General Revenues
Per Pupil Revenues
Grants and Contributions not
Restricted 10 Specific Programs
[nvesiment Ineome
Miscellaneous
Total General Revenues
Changes in Net Assets
Net Assets - Beginning, As Restated

Net Assels - Ending

See independent auditor's report

Thompson School District R2-J
Combining Statement of Activities
Component Units
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Thompson Totat
New Vision Education Component

Charter School Foundation Units

$ 1,669,693 - 1,669,693

897,667 1,369.086 2,266,753

336,328 - 336,328

2,903,688 1,369,086 4,272,774

55426 - 55,426

1,319,368 1,319,368

55,426 1,319,368 1,374,794

2,747,307 - 2,747,307

41,072 - 41,072

1,253 104,284 105,537

36,024 - 36,024

2,825,656 104,284 2,929,940

(22,606) 54,566 31,960

647,125 1,018,985 1,666,110

$ 624,519 1,073,55) 1,698,070
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the Thompson School District’s comprehensive annual financial report presents
detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial
statements, not disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the Distrct’s

overall financial health.

Contents

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the
Distriet’s financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information te help the reader assess the District’s most
significant local revenue sources.

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability
of the District’s current levels of outstanding debt and the District’s ability to
issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Kconomic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the District’s financial activities take
place.

Operating Information

These schedules contain personnel and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the information in the District’s financial report relates to the
services the District provides and the activities it performs.
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Thompson School District R2-J
Schedule of Nel Assels

Last Ten Years

{Accrual basis of accounting)
(Unaudited)

Governmental Activilies
Invesied in Capital Assels, Net of Relaled Debl
Restricled
Unrestrieted, Unassigned

Total Governmental Aclivities Nel Assels

Business-type Aclivilies
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted
Unrestricted, Unassigned

Tolal Bnsiness-lype Aclivities Net Assels

Primary Government
Invesied in Capilal Assels, Nel of Relaled Debt
Restricled
Unrestricted

‘Folal Primary Government Nel Assels

2002 2003 2004 2005
16,953,836 15,941,849 % 21,077,951 28,158,995
23,423,807 27,454,128 20,577,371 20,147,743

6,161,147 5,261,814 3,680,860 2,624,964
46.538,810 49057791 § 45,336,682 30,931,702
782,714 663,779 b 558,228 469,579
8,791 71,200 69,964 67,967
40,000 30,959 208,535 300,456
891,505 763938 % 836,727 838,002
17,736,570 16,605,628 % 21,636,179 28,628,574
23,492,598 27,925 328 20,647,335 20,215,711
6,201,147 5,292,773 3,889,395 2,925,420
47430315 49823729 46,173,409 51,769,705
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2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
34,936,956 § 43,636,008 47,022,288 50272273 % 52,399,048 54,766,501
21,873,077 19,230,832 19,710,398 20,344,714 20,717.458 21,066,584

4,190,887 13,201,584 15,333,817 17,297,596 17,421,337 17,065,795
51000920 § 76,118,424 82,066,501 87614582 90,537.843 92,898,880
378,465 % 286,573 192,657 400578 § 387,002 374,404
69,313 63,516 65,286 69,152 62,547 56,057
501,246 610,950 396,484 403,158 552,736 757,372
949024 963,069 654,427 ]72.888 & 1,002,375 1,190,833
35,315,421 § 43972581 47,214,945 50,672851 52,786,140 55,140,905
21,942,350 19,296,348 19,775,684 20,413,863 20,780,005 21,125,641
4,692,133 13,812,564 15,730,301 17,700,754 17.974,073 17,823,167
61,949944  § 77,081,493 82,720,929 98,787,470  § 91,540,218 94,089,713
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Thompson School District R2-1
Schedule of Changes in Net Assets
Last Ten Years

{Accrual basis of accounting)
{Unaudited)

Expenses
Governmenlal Activities:

Total Instruclion

Support Services
Pupil Services
Instructional Staii’
General Administration
School Admimistration
Business Services
Maintenance/Operations
Pupil Transportalion
Ceniral Supporting Services
Community Services
Interest on Long-lerm Debl
Tolal Support Services

Tolal Governmenlal Aciivilies Expenses

Business-type Aclivilies:
Nutritional Services
Tolal Primary Govemment Expenses

Program Revenues
Goverminenlal Aerivilies:
Charges (or Services
Instruction
Support Serviees
Pupil Services
Instruclional Stalf
General Adiministration
School Adminisitation
Business Serviees
Mainlenance Operalions
Central Supporting Services
Operating Grants and Contnibnlions
Capital Grants and Contributions
Tolal Govemmenial Activives Program Revenues

Business-type Aeuvilies:
Nulritional Services
Tewnl Pimary Government Program Revenues

Nel (Expense)/Revenue
Governmental Activilies
Business-type Aclivilies
Tolal Primary Governiment Ne1 Expense

Conlinued on next page

s

£

b3

2002 2003 2004 2005

37510303 § 61394975 S 6LL71.736 S 53,012,325
6,395,317 6,924,508 6,612,481 6.948,277
6,488,963 8,072,644 7,828,193 7,540,045
616.396 535,449 750,238 919,514
6,092,659 6,590,527 6,641,734 6.863.529
1,340,104 1,559,503 1,632,314 1,641,331
9,416,543 13.933,782 10,901,991 9,942,999
1,682.457 2,464,000 3,032,800 2.916.150
3,746,070 1,827,622 5,066,225 3,928,544
406,469 936.233 1.325,831 1,152,881
5,909,536 6,610,993 8,632,902 3,191,072
42,114,564 51,475,261 52,424,709 45,246,342
99,624,867 112.820,236 115,602,445 108259 667
1,521,504 3,581,246 3,503,514 3,582,130
103.146371 S 116,401,482 § 119,105,959 § 111,840,797
TMII  § 820960 % 815357 % 888,085

313 1,839 1211 1,372

59218 63.005 51,517 58,367
13,853 23,012 25.596 28,999

782 9IR 901 1.024

243,033 299,557 531,279 601,923
9,030,381 9.845 561 9.376,242 9,543,359
149,055 666.222 28,970 94,556
10,220,604 11,721,173 10,831,073 11,218,185
1,193,021 3,452,585 3,573,607 3,581,918
13,613,625 § 15071758 8 14680 § 14,500,123
(89,404,263) 5 (101,099063) §  (104,771372) % (97,040,482)
(128,483) (128,561 70,003 (192}
(295327460 8 (101227.724)  §_ (104,701,279)  § __ (97.040.674)
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2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

§ 62223449 § 66.529.238 & 67,834,949 8 69,893811 % 72938588  § 72,447,458
7.227,057 7,570,257 8,717,227 8,823.14) 10,866,456 9,614,206

7,749.997 7,944,486 10,4252 1 10,651.345 11,821,157 10,981,248

925276 1,113,179 1,213,567 1,097,462 1,123,951 1,067.871

7,026,788 6,999,468 8,046,845 8,196,106 8.760,952 8478267

1,693,037 1,706,322 1.785.422 2,286,161 3.587.229 2,231,389
12.039.281 6,188,899 11,122,270 13,799,484 12,242,873 13,854,509
2,718.558 3.220,776 4,012,223 4,153,388 5.882.278 5.292,524

2778997 8,767 469 7,592,636 3,979,589 4.045.434 1,934,697

1,210.399 694,139 785,524 831,718 925,487 1,443,698

4,521,000 6,088,520 6,759,440 6,679,897 6.188,509 5,977,903
47,890,390 50,293,515 60,460,465 60,498,290 65,474,766 £2 108,312
110,113,839 116,822,753 128,295,409 130,392,101 138,413,754 135,385,770
1,630,472 3,681,340 4,170.018 4011,436 4,348,417 4,320,056

$ 113,744,311 § 120504093 § 132.465.428 % 134,403,537 § 142,762,171 § 139.675.826
$ 927.887 % 945,121 § 715218 % §27,452 % 716,333 § 1.655,641
2,420 1,188 - - - -

30,216 17.647 39,678 45,904 39125 90,403

41,068 51.298 54,747 63,138 - -
37,191 28,190 21,366 24,719 6,288 14,52%

152 454 - - . .

460,476 487.370 482,762 358319 562,606 1,299,973

9,824,094 11,584.333 10,766,875 12,656.371 14,717,024 14,227,794

6,731 427,774 . - - -

11,330,435 13,543.375 12,080,646 14,176,303 16,041,576 17,288,340
3,738,322 1,690,758 1,857.119 1,625.487 4,419,110 4,436,524

$ 15.068,757 % 17.234,173  § 15.937.765 & 18.101,750  § 20,460,686 § 21,724,264

] (98783404 & {103,279,378) b3 (116214763 3§ (116215798 § (122,372,178) ¥ (118,067,431)
107,850 9,458 (312,900} (85,949) 70,093 116,468

$ (R675.554) S (1032699200 S (116527663} §_ (1I16301.747) $ (122300455 B (117,080,963}




Thompson School District R2-J
Schedule of Changes in Net Assels
Last Ten Years

{Accrual basis of accounting)
{(Unaudited)

General Revenues
Governmental Activilies:
Property Taxes Levied For:
General Purpose
Mill Levy Qverride
Debt Services
Specific Ownership Taxes Levied For:
General Purpose
Mill Levy Override
Inicrgoverminental
Equalization
Payments in Lieu of Land Dedicalion
Interest and Invesunent Earmings
Grants and Contributions not Restricicd to Speeific Programs
Gain on Salc of Capilal Asscl
Miscellaneous
Transfer
Total Governmental Aclivities

Business-type Aclivilies:
Interest and luvesuncnl Earnings
Miscellaneous
Trausfer

Total Business-typc Activitics

Total Primary Government

Change in Net Assets
Governimeutal Activities
Business-lype Activities
Total Primary Goverinent

2002 2003 2004 2005
23,608,076 3 25,457,040 b3 26,556,635 24,432 966
7,240,226 7,459,483 7,454,021 7463272
11,216,909 11,932,524 12,509,394 10,185,101
3,939,999 3,821,176 4,008,797 3,866,971
786,518 788,540 803,842 784,202
47,140,244 51,539,947 53,208,893 53,573,154
838416 981,415 876,004 831,031
1,182,788 507,403 372,307 758,603
- - - 415,401
933,051 1,130,516 264,345 314,801}
96,886,227 103,618,044 106,054,498 102,635,502
930 842 696 1468
1,164 2252 - -
2,114 3,054 696 1,468
96,888,341 b 103,621,138 b 106,055,194 102,636,970
7,481,964 $ 2,518,981 3 1,283,126 5,595,020
{126,369) (125,567 70,789 1,276
7,355,595 b3 2,393414 $ 1,353.915 5,596,296
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2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

$ 25704275 $ 26,228,693 $ 28,363,669 $ 30,242,965 $ 30378658 S 29,728,007
7,480,274 12,058,082 12,456,986 12,774 017 13,209,662 12,857,383
11,607,605 11,811,769 11,119912 11,265,715 12,053,521 12,532,757
3,608,215 3,873,082 4,271,504 4,339,660 4,058,837 3,853,468

843,186 705,116 687,375 - - -
54,738,055 57,847 052 59,874,117 62,255,043 64,803,052 57,404,922
927293 733,693 499 858 313,552 232,579 242,816

3,204,484 5,249371 4,071,983 1,175,751 317,332 107,407

- - - - - 3,773,100

679,235 914,492 817438 - - -
3 = (58,202) {71,352;

108,852,622 119,421,350 122,162,842 122,366,703 124,995,439 120,428,468

3,171 4,587 4258 1,584 592 598

- - - - 58,202 71,392

3,171 4,587 4,258 1,584 58,794 71,990

$ 108 855,703 b 119425937 $ j22 167,009 $ 122,368,287 $ 125054233 $ 1241 50,458
$ 10,069,218 s 16,141,972 $ 5,948,079 $ 5,848,079 $ 2623201 % 2,361,037
111,021 14,045 (308,642) 218401 129,487 188,458

$ 10,180,239 $ 16,156,017 $ 5,639,436 $ 6,066,540 % 2,752,748 % 2,549 495




Thompson School District R2-J

Schedule of Fund Balances, Governmental Funds
Last Ten Years

{Modiflicd accrual aecounting)

(Unaudited)

2002 2003 2004 2005

General Fund

Restricled S 3,477,354 3,417,314 3,899,430 4,230,904

Unrestricted, Unassigned 7,502,040 9,143,617 8,930,981 8,375,509
Tolal General Fund 10,979,394 12,560,931 12,830,431 12,606,413
All Other Governmental Funds

Restricted 19,931,437 24 408,997 16,645,409 15,881,936

Assigned - - - -

Unrestricled, Unassigned 3,130,837 2,943,489 1,456,610 1,719,568
Tolal Al Other Governmental Funds 23,062,274 27,352 486 18,102,019 17,601,504
Total Governmental Funds $ 34,041 668 39913417 30,932,430 30,207917

;2]



)

2006

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
3,644,088 S 3,599,242 4,517,882 4,821,889 4,727,990 § 4,757,546
10,311,178 17,783,886 18,808,539 19,294,606 20,530,456 24,969,474
13,955,266 21,383,128 23,326,421 24,116,495 25,258 446 29,727,020
106,197,107 79,919,801 32,872,901 33834519 20,542,333 18,416,837
- - . . - 3,015,162
1,899.136 2,710,309 2,975,899 3,255,332 3,600,654 -
108,096.243 82,630,110 55,348,800 37,089,851 24,442,987 21,431,999
122,031,509 % 104,013,238 79,175,221 61,206,346 49701433 § 51,159,019
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Thompson School District R2-J

Schedule of Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds
Last Ten Years

{Modified accrual accounting)

(Unaudited)

2002 2003 2004 2005
Revenues
Taxes h) 46,791,728 $ 48,677,114 49314672 47,881,408
Intergovermmental 56,119,346 60,939.434 62,003,232 62,832,803
Investment Earnings 1.182,235 507,060 371,980 757,768
Other 4,370,368 4,797,990 3,206,253 3,041,789
Total Revenues 108,463,677 114,921,598 114,896,137 114,513,768
Expenditures
Current:
[nstruction
Salaries and Benefits 49,530,112 52,742,724 34,271,472 55,316,035
Purchased Services 1,692,550 1,903,506 2,076,288 2,221,777
Supplies and Malerials 3312747 3,414,106 3,210,706 3,122,051
Other 201,137 194,785 231,676 122,580
Supperting Services
Pupil Services 6,173,161 6,633,916 6,321,785 6,761,203
Instruetional Stalf 6,266,194 7,760,087 7,516,507 7,444,139
General Administration 612,976 512,979 5,821,374 896,903
School Administration 5,869,595 6,313,951 6,349,752 6,680,383
Business Services 1,787,754 2,119,057 2,660,555 2,709,954
Maintenance/Operalions Q177,770 14,129,970 10,434,325 10,080,023
Pupil Transportation 2,621,154 2,731,259 3,323,739 3,041,299
Centra) Supporting Services 3,090,305 2,802,815 3,565,282 2,542,102
Community Services 1,751,460 1,527,067 1,283,364 1,112,527
Capital Projects 5,246,376 1,073,283 879,514 §82,134
Charter School - - - -
Bond Issuance Costs - - 258,618
Debl Service:
Principal 1,923,000 1,695,035 14,685,732 10,225,047
[nterest 5,907,560 6,715,422 6,023,451 2,495,545
Tolal Expenditures 105,173,851 112,269,962 128,655,522 115,912,320
Excess (deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures 3,289,826 2,651,636 (13,759,385) (1,398,552)
Other Finaneing Sources (Uses)
Transfers [n 7,773,529 9,127,797 10,311,254 9,332,428
Transfers Qul (7,773,529} (9,127,797) (10,311,254) (9,332,428}
Proceeds [rom Capital Leasc 220,939 3,220,113 4,485,000 -
Issuance ol Debt - - 25,660,000 22,215,000
Transler 10 Bond Escrow - - (27,407 ,353) (23,276,594)
Premium on Bond Financing - - 2,040,771 1,320,212
Procecds from Sale of Capital Assels - - - 415,401
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses) 220,939 3,220,113 4,778,418 674,019
Nel Change lo Fund Balance h) 3,510,765 hY 5,871,749 (8,980,967) (724,533)
Debt Service as a Percenlage of
Non-Capital Expendilures 7.84% 7.56% 16.21% 11.06%

82



2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
49,085,270 54,301,144 56,727,661 57,546,346 58,780,951 60,845,170
64,307,404 69,298,311 70,640,991 73,912,330 78,751,910 76,473,714

3,262,834 524937 4,071,983 1,175,751 317,332 107,407
3,608,178 2,910,865 2,631,068 2,832,568 1,574,546 1,779,721

120,263,686 131,759,691 134,071,703 135,466,995 139,424,739 139,206,012

54,622,983 55,096,973 56,207,799 61,456,412 63,192,919 63,024,849
2,182,801 2,230,932 2,062,371 1,830,410 2,264,059 1,761,663
2,746,923 3.161,315 3,312,954 3,295,393 3,194,067 2,523,932

132,878 126,311 133,708 128,767 125,206 141,885
7,021,698 7,349,203 8,477,310 8,532,676 10,469,008 9,135,938
7,564,297 7,712,504 10,230,511 10,426,810 11,516,102 10,568,331
925,216 1,081,439 1,179,122 1,055,759 1,057,750 1,040,479
6,827,099 6,795,081 7,825,018 7,927,542 8,459,745 8,095.652
2,244,847 1,674,017 1,750,356 2,243,707 3,520,988 2,156,866

11,697,226 23,696,567 20,064,310 17,325,065 10,809,066 12,368,434
3437555 3,149,984 3,935,390 4,060,367 4,557,453 4,331,921
2,824,053 3,637,045 3,874,845 3,754,589 3,485,465 3,102,498
1,175,910 650,149 737,782 773,917 859,246 1,348,044
8,064,632 18,386,234 21,550,163 16,014,388 13,015,568 2,544,904

. 1,868,346 2,257,196 2,722,161 2,764,792 2,747,307

82,798 - - ; ; .
5,668,988 5,787,500 6,115,104 5,933.065 5,231,399 3,761,316
4,539,810 6,519,762 6,195,782 5,954,842 5,406,789 9,094,407

122,659,814 148,923,362 158,909,721 153,435,869 150,929,652 137,748,426
(2,396,128) (17,163,671) (24 .338.018) {17.968.874) (11,504,913) 1,457,586
10,177,062 10,044,571 10,256,580 $,386,336 9,024,938 4,234,946

(10,177,062) (10,044,571) (10,256,580) (9,386,336) (9,024,938) (4,234,946)
89,215,000 - - - -

5,024,720 - - - -
04,239,720 - ; ; - -
91,843,592 (17,063,671 (24.838018) §  (17.968.874) (11,504,913) 1,457,586

8.91% 9.43% 8.96% 8.65% 8.44% 9.55%
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Thompson School District R2-J
Assessed Value and Estimated Value of Taxable Property

(Unaudited)
Natural Resources
Year Ended Residential Commercial Industrial Qil & Gas,
December 31 Property Property Property Agricultural & Utilitics
2001 1,288,723.030 650,552,360 96,424,380 19,555,940 75,664,210
2002 1,549,649,830 803,155,060 105,173,350 19,693 910 79,068,070
2003 1,627,889,490 826,707,590 109,967,760 19,856,750 94,106,880
2004 1,702,909,960 915,101,040 111,710,270 15,291,010 88,390,920
2005 1,765,704,970 935,712,490 113,792,070 15,556,060 81,237,808
2006 1,913,606,420 1,042,005,600 111,003,590 16,403,560 86,809,902
2007 1,998,127,240 1,087,444,240 111,954,530 17,243,500 87,703,917
2008 2,113,390,350 1,310,626,770 119,666,640 18,747,970 101,024,495
2009 2,160,609,780 1,384,794,970 121,315,930 18,988,750 102,501,701
2010 2,201,793,580 1,477,270,670 124,621,590 18,228,540 108,573,195
From 2001 (0 2010, commereial real property, undevetoped land, personal property and utilities were
assessed at 29% ol replacement cost caleulated on the base year's appraised value.
Residential real properiy was assessed as lollows:
Assessment
Percentage Base Ycar
2001 0.74% 1999 appraised value
2002 9.15% 2001+ appraised value
2003 9.15% 2001 appraised value
2004 7.96% 2003 appraised value
2005 7.96% 200) appraised value
2006 7.96% 2005 appraised value
2007 7.96% 2003 appraised value
2008 7.96% 2007 appraised value
2009 7.96% 2007 appraised value
2010 7.96% 2009 appraised value

Sonrce: Larimer County Assessor's Office - Larimer County December 32010 Comprebensive Annual Financial Report

Note: All residential and commercial real propertics are reappraised every two years in the odd year ¢yele bringing
properties to the currenl market Jevel of valuation. The residential assess rate is set by the Legislature and coincides
with changes in the level ol value. This is constitutionally required and designed to slabilize the lax burden on

residential property.
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Assessed

Total Taxable Estimated Value asa
Personal Assessed Tax Exempt Total Direct Aetual Percentage of
Property Value Property Tax Rate Taxable Value Actual Value
299,078,820 2,429,998,740 1,014,089,890 49.168 18,019,838,182 13.49%
292,583,570 2,849,323,790 934,372,150 48,462 21,417,698,061 13.30%
280,954,090 2,959,482,560 883,309,080 46.671 22,382,842,209 13.22%
274,798,890 3,108,202,090 965,930,430 42.687 26.239,176,137 11.85%
273,690,849 3,185,694,247 509,850,250 40.250 27,078,737,98¢9 11.76%
283,537,320 3,453,366,392 1,056,157,790 43.457 29,349,798,804 11.77%
282,913,948 3,585,387.375 1,177,190,260 41.657 30,575411,815 11.73%
322,040,632 3,985,496,857 1,204,106,620 40.974 33,005,669,705 12.08%
333,629,268 4,121,840,399 1.179,516,220 41.295 33,006,203,149 12.16%
331,309,312 4.263,796,887 1,185,391,810 41.643 34,789,308,674 12.26%
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Thompson School District R2-J
Property Tax Rates
Direct and Overlapping Governments (per $1.000 of Assessed Value)
Lasi Ten Fiscal Years {Unaudiled)

Last Year 2001 1002 20403 2004 2005 2046 2007 2008 29 2010
Collection Year 20402 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Scheol Disinct

General Fund 27,342 RYAE]] 25858 25.304 22985 22.523 32.438 32,194 32.079 32.080
Mill Levy Override 8500 8.195 7687 T.383 6.755 10.636 0.198 0112 0.096 0.407
Debt Services 13.126 13.126 13.126 10.000 10510 30.298 9.0 8.668 9120 9.156
School Dismct Total 49168 43.452 46.671 42.687 40.230 43.457 4) 657 40.974 41.295 41,643
Larimer County 21614 22461 22.560 22,517 32541 22410 22414 22395 22.43% 32,524
Town of Berthoud 6.673 5.673 6.673 6.4909 5.664 10.735 11.551 9.162 9.630 9.737
Ciry ol Fort Colling - - - - 9.797 9.797 9797 9.797 9.797 9.797
Ciry of Loveland 9.364 9.564 9.564 9.564 9.364 9.564 9.364 9.564 9.564 9.564
Town of Windsor - - - - 12.030 12.030 12.030 12.030 12.030 12.030
Town of Jobnsiown - - - - 23.9347 13.947 23.947 23.947 23947 23947
Johnstown Fire Protection Distriet - - - - - §.79¢6 9.478 9.524 9.464 9.517
Berthoud Fire Proteciion Distnet 2128 8.128 3.128 15.274 15.274 15274 13274 15.274 15174 15.274
Leveland Fire District 6.674 6.674 6674 5.808 5.808 5308 5.808 5.808 3.808 39319
Poudre Valley Fire Iisinct - - - - 9.301 2.301 9.301 9.301 9301 10.595
Windsor-Severance Fire Distnict - - - - 4.944 4944 4.944 6.119 6.684 7.894
Lyons Fire Distnet - - - - 7.14% 7.193 7.196 353 6.325 8325
Pinewood Lake Fire Distnct - - - - 6.445 5.944 6373 6.373 6.271 6.271
Healih Dastnet of Northern Lanmer Co., - - - - 2,167 2167 2167 2167 2167 2167
Thompson Valley Hospiial District 1.669 1.364 1.564 1519 1,309 1.492 147 1.716 2.093 1.8%9
Larimer County P12, No. 27 - - - - - 56.693 55.946 53946 56.844 56.844
Larimer Counry P.1.D. No. 15 - - - - - 104,222 29.208 29.208 7.082 7.044
Lanmer County P.1.D. No. 36 - - - - - 13.485 13.580 13.580 13,580 13,380
Lanmer Pesi Conteol 0.124 0.124 0124 0142 0.142 0.142 0.142 0.142 0.142 Q.142
Lanmer County G.1.D. No. § Namaqua Hills - - - - - 8.145 8.382 8.382 8382 8.382
Loveland General Improvemem District 24684 - - 2,684 2.684 2.684 2684 2676 2684 2.684
Esles Valley Recrealion and Park - - - - 1.331 1472 1.404 2393 2311 2339
West Loveland Recreauon Bismet 5.557 5.557 5.557 - - - - - - -

South Fort Collins Sanitation Distnct - - - - - 0.500 0.300 (0.487 6.500 0.500
Fori Collins - Loveland Water Disimet - - - - - 1.500 1500 1.500 1.500 1.500
Poudre River Public Library Disiriet - - - - - 3.000 3.000 3.000 3.000 3.000
North Carter Lake Water Disinet - - - - - 10.756 10.225 10.750 8.783 9.400
No. Cotorado Water Conservancy District 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
Spring Canyon Warter and Sannatien - - - 1966 ing 3.000 3050 2811 1.853
West Loveland Water and Samianon 12382 12.382 12.382 - - - - - - -

Thompson Crossing Metropoliian No. 2 - - - - - 20,000 20,000 20.000 20.000 20000
Van De Water Metropolitan Distnet No, 2 - - - - 45980 45980 45.980 45.980 45,980 435980
Van De Water Metropolitan District No. 3 - - - - - 45.980 40,000 40.000 40,000 40.000
Windsor Highlands Metropolitan No. 3 - - - - 30,000 35.000 35.000 35000 35.000 35.000
Windsor Highlands Metrepolilan No. 4 - - - - - 35.000 35.000 35.000 35.000 33.000
Centerra Metropolilan District No. 2 - - - - 35.000 35.000 32.600 42.600 42.600 42.600
Waterfront Meiropolilan Distriet - - - - 45979 45.979 45.979 45,979 45979 43.97%
Lincoln Place Meuropolilan Disinct - - - 55,000 55.000 50.000 - - - -

Loveland Midiown Merropolitan No. | B - - - - 40.000 40.000 40.000 40.000 40,000
Larimer County P.L.G. No. 31 - - - - - 137.632 121,967 31,384 24314 24,192
Thempson Crossing Melropolitan No. 4 - - - - - 76.000 60.000 60.000 60,000 &60.000
Highpainte Visla Metropolian No. 2 - - - - - 26.000 32000 35.000 35.000 35.000
Deer Meadows Mewropolilan Disunet - - - - - 40.000 45.000 45.000 60.000 60.000
Thempson Rivers Park & Rec. Distmcl - - - - - 3.594 3.594 3.594 3.594 3.594
Thompson Crossing Metopohtan No. 3 - - - - - - 60.000 60.000 60.000 60,000
Thompson Crossing Metrepolilan No. § - - - - - - 60.000 60,000 60,000 60.000
Thompson Cressing Meuopoltan No. & - - - - - - 60.000 60.000 60,000 60.000
Johnsiown North Memopolitan No. | - - - - - - 20,000 25.000 25.000 25.000
Johnstown Nonh Metropolitan No. 2 - - - - - - 20.000 25.000 25.000 25000
Johnstown North Metropolitan No. 3 - - - - - - 20,000 25.000 25.000 25.000
Centemra Meropolilan Cismct No. 2 Bond - - - - - - - 6655 6.655 6.655
Centerma Meuropohtan Chstricl No. 3 - - - - - - - 5.000 5.000 3.000
Windsor Highlands Melropolitan No. | - - - - - - - 30.000 30.000 30.000
Windsor Highlands Meropelitan No. 2 - - - - - - - 35.000 35,000 35.000
Windsor Highlands Metropolitan Ne. 5 - - - - - - - 35.000 35.000 35.000
Benhoud Communiry Library - - - - - - - 2.400 2.400 2,400
Lanmer County 2.1.D. No. 39 - - B - - B - - - 9988
Lanmer County P.1.D. No. 49 - - - - - - - - - 16.762
Centerry Metropohitan District No Res Debl - - - - - - - - - 35.000
Centetra Metropohilan Distnct No. 5 - - - - - - - - - 13.000
Lakewiew Metropolian Disinct - - - - - - - - - 50.000
Waterfall Metropohtan Disiriel No. 1 - - - - - - - - - 22,500
Windsor Highlands Metropoinan No. 6 - - - - - - - - - 35.000

Sowrce: Larimer Counly Assessor's Otfice
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Thompson School District R2-J
Principal Taxpayers
Current Year and Ten Years Ago

(Unaudited)
2011 2002
Taxable Percentage ol Taxable Percentage of
Assessed Toral Assessed Total
Taxpayer Yalue Rank Assessed Value Value Rank Assessed Yalue

CLCREQ,LLC 3 24,927,400 1 0.58% 3 - -
Wal-Mart Slores East, LP 13,617,010 2 0.32% 8,296,290 3 0.96%
Qwesl Corporation 11,373,600 3 0.27% 7,432,800 4 -
Agilent Technologies. Incorporated 9,407 280 4 0.22% 18,321,200 1 2.12%
Public Service Company of Colorado 9,040,330 5 0.21% 2,335,870 9 0.30%
Craig Realty Group-Loveland, LLC 8,018,500 6 0.19% - -
MCR-MOB L1.C 7,394,480 7 0.17% - -
John . Haimmons Hatels 6,940,570 8 0.16% - -
Praxair Incorporated 5,268,420 9 0.12% - -
Hach Company 4,543,980 10 0.11% 2.880,590 8 0.33%
Quebecor World Incorporaled - - 6.024,300 5 0.70%
Loveland Faclory Shops LP - - 11,641,000 2 1.35%
Woodward Governor Company - 2.546,930 10 0.30%
Teledyne Indusiries 3,992,390 [ 0.46%
Orchard Shopping Center Paninership - - 3,534,870 7 0.41%

5 100,531,620 236% 3 67.232.260 6.93%
Tolal assessed valuation b3 4,263 796,887 b3 862,347,930

Source: Larimer County Assessor's Olfice
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Thompson School District R2-J
Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Years

(Unaudited)
Year Taxes Levied Collected within the Delinquent Total Collection to Dale

Assessment Ended for the Year of the Levy Tax
Year June 30 Year (1} Amount Percenlage ol Levy Collections Amoun{ Percentage ol Levy
2001 2002 42,399,981 42065211 99.2% 37,970 42,103,181 99.3%
2002 2003 44143219 44,067,398 99 8% (321,468) 43,745,930 99.1%
2003 2004 45329,848 44,502,033 98.2% 555836 45,057,869 99.4%
2004 2005 43366318 43,230,235 99.7% (210,848) 43,019,387 99.2%
2005 2006 44331015 44,262,935 99.8% (463.892) 43,799,043 98.8%
2006 2007 50,059,218 47,530,029 94.9% 650,755 48,180,784 96.2%
2007 2008 55,222,130 51,940,567 94.1% 13,102 51,953,669 94.1%
2008 2009 57,074,070 54,282,697 95.1% 104,872 54,387,569 95.3%
2009 2010 58,927,888 55,641,841 94.4% 153,895 55,795,736 94.7%
2010 2011 59,466,956 55,118,147 92.7% 987,023 56,105,170 94.3%

Notes:

(1) This column does not include abalcments and reappraisals during the year

Source: Laritner County Assessor's Office
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Thompson School District R2-J
Ratios of OQutstanding Debt by Type (Governmentai Only)

Last Ten Years

(Unaudited)
General Cenificate Percentage
Obligation of Participation Total of Personal Per

Year Bonds Bonds Capital Leases Government [ncome (1) Capita (1)

2002 76,597,738 - 1,875,058 78,472.796 4.81% 1.453
2003 75,168,738 - 4,829,136 79,997,874 4.79% 1,399
2004 70,461,009 4,485,000 2,667,404 77613413 4.30% 1,300
2003 61,802,167 4,325,000 2,162,357 68,280,524 3.62% 1,136
2006 151,323,193 4,160,000 1,768,368 157,251,561 7.99% 2,540
2007 146,254,499 3,990,000 1,605,869 151,850,368 7.20% 2,369
2008 128,404,737 3,815,000 1,435,765 133,655,502 5.92% 2,031
2009 122,829,737 3,635,000 1,257,700 127,722,437 5.33% 1,971
2010 116,969,737 3,450,000 1,071,301 121,491,038 4.93% 1,846
2011 113,593,544 3,260,000 876,179 117,729.723 4.73% 1,768

Notes: Delails regarding the District's cutstanding debt ean be found in the Notes Lo the Finaneials Statements.

(1) Seethe Demograpic page in the Stalislical Sectien for persenal inceme and pepulation data.
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Thompson School District R2-J
Ratio of Net General Bonded Debt to Assessed Value and Net Bonded Debt per Capita
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)
Debt Service Ratio of Net Net Bonded
Year Ended Gross Funds Net Bonded Due to Debt per
December 31 Bonded Debt Available Bonded Debt Assessed Value (1) Capita
2002 76,597,738 13,572,046 63,025,692 7.31% 661
2003 75,168,738 17,499,748 57,668,990 6.30% 644
2004 70,461,009 11,431,587 59,029,422 6.05% 632
2005 61,802,167 9,885,779 51,916,388 5.09% 538
2006 151,323,193 12,481,416 138,841,777 12.51% 2,072
2007 146,254,499 12,939,805 133,314,694 11.53% 2,080
2008 128,404,737 12,481,784 115,922,953 3.23% 1,762
2009 122,829,737 12,465,223 110,364,514 2.77% 1,703
2010 116,969,737 13,488,987 103,480,750 2.51% 1,573
2011 113,593,544 13,767,050 99,826,494 2.34% 1,499

Source: Larimer County Assessor's Office
(1) Assessed Value is $4,263,756,887 for 2010.
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Direct Debt:
Thempson School District R2-J

Overlapping Debt:
Town of Berthoud
Berthoud Fire District
Tolal Overlapping Debt

Total

Thompson School District R2-J

Computaticn of Direct and Overlapping Bended Debt

General Obligation Bonds

3

$

June 30, 2011
(Unaudited)

General Obligation

Long-Term Debt

Percent
Applicable to

Qutstanding the Distriet (1)
113,593,544 100.00%
6,707,734 100.00%
1,080,730 31.43%
7,788,464
121,382,008

Net Direct and
Overlapping
Debt

113,593,544

6,707,734
339,673
7,047,407

k 120,640,951

(1) Determined by ealculating ratio of assessed valuation of laxable property within the Districl o assessed valuation of the overlapping unit.
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Thompson School District R2-J
Principal Employers
Current and Ten Years Ago
{(Unaudited)

2010 2001
Percentage Percentage
of Total City of Total City

Employer Employees Rank Employment Emplovees Rank Employment
Thompson School District R2-J 2,616 | 8.30% 1,850 1 6.60%
Medical Center of the Rockies 953 2 3.02% - -
MecKee Medical Center 940 3 2.98% 900 4 121%
Wal-Mart Distobution Center 851 4 2.70% 1,000 3 1.57%
Wal-Mart Super Cenler 785 5 2.49% 500 3 1.78%
Hach Company 741 6 2.35% 640 7 2.28%
City of Loveland 639 7 2.03% 667 6 2.33%
US Engineering 466 8 |.48% - -
Agilent Technologies 184 9 1.22% 1,450 2 5.17%
Hewlett-Packard 349 10 1.11% 730 5 2.60%
Group Publishing - - 270 10 0.96%
Teledvne Water Pik - - 400 9 1.43%
Total 3,724 27.68% 8,407 29.98%
Total City Employment 31,532 28,025

(a) The number for 2011 was not available; therefore. the 2010 was used.

Source: City of Loveland December 31, 2010 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
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Thompson School District R2-J
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)
County
Personal Per Capita

Fiscal Year Population Income Income (b) Median Unemployment

(thousands) (millions) (thousands} Age Percentage (a)
2001 54.0 1,630.80 30.2 33.3 4.1
2002 572 1,670.2G 29.2 334 4.8
2003 59.7 1,.802.90 30.2 340 52
2004 60.1 1,887.1¢ 34 34.4 5.3
2005 619 1,968.40 31.8 36.0 4.1
2006 64.1 2,108.90 329 339 35
2007 65.8 2,256.90 343 33.2 3.4
2008 64.8 2,394.75 37.0 359 43
2009 65.8 2,466.25 375 36.9 6.2
2010 66.6 2,487.66 37.4 36.9 6.5

Note: The Unemployment Percentage for 2008 was unavailable al the time of 2008 CAFR
publication, so the most recent figure at the time (2007; 3.4%) was used. This data has now
been updated 10 the subsequently documented 2008 figure of 4.3%.

{a) Metropolitan Statistical Area of Fort Collins/Loveland, separate City statistics not available
(b) Larimer County, separate City statistics not available

Source: City of Loveland December 31,2010 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
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THOMPSON

SCHOOL DISTRICT




Schools

Elementary Schools
Berthoud

BF Kitchen

Big Thompson
Carrie Martin
Centennial
Cottonwood Plains
Coyote Ridge
Garfield

Ivy Stockwell
[Laurene Edmondson
Lincoln

Mary Blair
Monroe

Namaqua
Ponderosa

Sarah Milner
Stansberry
Truscott

Van Buren
Winona

Middie Schools
Bill Reed
Conrad Ball
Lucile Erwin
Tumer

Walt Clark

High Schools
Berthoud
Ferguson
Loveland
Mountain View
Thompson Valley

Totals

Thompson School District R2-J
School Building Information

Tane 30, 2011
(Unaudited)

Enrollment History by Fiscal Year

Sq.Ft.  Capacity 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
50,050 550 432 419 453 424 404 404
33,300 250 250 215 207 194 185 233
29,100 240 206 183 178 192 200 212
33,350 310 304 317 343 322 299 307
57,750 535 417 418 409 343 319 343
57,400 450 426 433 458 555 517 529
53,500 330 347 295 270 - - -
34,900 305 258 294 280 261 273 246
36,050 350 334 334 314 342 363 376
32,650 315 227 246 248 289 302 310
40,500 360 246 366 353 393 391 43]
48,150 475 423 487 472 496 471 461
51,050 365 305 352 394 393 420 409
51,550 460 396 480 471 509 516 603
71,500 550 370 - - - - -

36,700 390 312 328 344 336 366 345
31,800 235 243 253 245 241 216 235
45,700 275 302 284 273 282 285 267
32,800 305 212 274 24| 269 266 272
65,500 550 440 435 424 407 364 332
146,500 900 650 618 622 604 612 645
06,100 BIO 646 621 640 703 783 754
115,500 900 874 854 881 836 736 800
72,750 770 447 421 413 426 434 437
96,850 900 574 586 643 683 708 70
129,200 990 615 615 630 656 675 673
43,000 185 124 122 104 99 102 97
204,300 1,500 1,479 1,595 1,604 1,596 1,578 1,536
252,300 1,475 1,047 1,065 1,090 1,141 1,126 L,179
218,000 1,475 1,272 1,318 1,418 1,406 1,413 1,477

2,268,300 17,505 14,141 14,228 14,422 14,398 14,322 14,773

Source: Thompson School District Master Plans
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2005 2004 2003 2002

415 406 399 415
244 260 279 275
211 224 231 257
285 281 265 258
409 362 340 335
485 463 464 469
253 247 298 295
159 365 365 385
304 315 320 311
327 306 308 300
445 433 444 45)
430 411 441 387
580 591 626 649
353 38) 405 463
246 273 288 314
207 209 220 222
271 286 280 285
411 396 359 322
697 693 727 707
784 800 78] 764
801 801 782 777
467 495 508 504
789 753 756 741
631 704 639 685
105 94 102 112
1,493 1,477 1,464 | 467
1,195 1,221 1,147 965
1,435 1,425 1,503 1,536

14,682 14,681 14,791 14,651
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@&ﬁ Swanhorst & Company LLC

Certified Public Accouatams

Board of Education
Thompson School District R2-J
Loveland, Colorado

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

We have audited the financial statements ofthe governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate discretely presented component units and remaining fund information of the Thompson School
District R2-J as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements
of the Thompson School District R2-J, and have issued our report thereon dated November 22, 2011. Qur report
includes a reference to other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordanee with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicabie to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Other auditors audited the financial
statements of the New Vision Charter School, as described in our report on the Thompson Schocl District R2-J’s
finaneial statements. The financial statemnents of the New Vision Charter School were not audited in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Thompson School District R2-J’s internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing cur opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Thompson School
District R2-J’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Thempson School District R2-J’s internal contro] over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not aliow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Thompson School District R2-
J’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and coirected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of the Thompson School District R2-I’s internal control over financial reporting was for the [imited
purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses,
as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Thompson School District R2-I’s financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinton. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncomptliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing

Standards.
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We noted certain matters that we reported to management and the Board of Education of the Thompson School
District R2-J in a separate letter dated November 22, 2011.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Education, management, federal awarding
agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these

specified parties.

SMJWHL Wﬁz%

November 22, 201 |
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t;&p Swanhorst & Company LLC
e &

Cermilied Public Acconatints

Board of Education
Thompson School District R2-J
Loveland, Colorade

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH
REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL
EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Compliance

We have audited the Thompson School District R2-F’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the U. S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 201]. The
Thompson School Distriet R2-3's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section
of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to cach of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the
Thompson School District R2-)’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Thompson School
District R2-J°s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A- 133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we ptan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requircments referred (o above that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence about the Thompson School District R2-)’s compliance with those requirements and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our andit provides a reasonable
basts for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal deiermination of the Thompson School District R2-J7s
complhance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Thompson School District R2-J complied, in all material respects, with the compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for
the year ended June 30, 2011,

Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Thompson School District R2-] js responsible for cstablishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Thompson Schoel District R2-)’s internal control
over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program to
determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report
on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Thempson School District R2-1"s internal control over compliance.
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A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of the Thompson School District R2-J’s internal control over compliance was for the limited
purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify ali deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal contro! over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined
above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Education, management, federal awarding

agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

OWandindy Guap - LU

November 22, 2011
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THOMPSON SCHOOL DISTRICT R2-J

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Year Ended June 30, 2011

Summary of Auditors’ Results
Financial Statements
Type of auditors’ report issued: unqualilied

Internal control over financial reporting;:
« Material weaknesses identified?

+ Significant deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted?

Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
= Material weaknesses identified?

= Significant deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses?

yes X no

yes X none reported

ves X no
yes X no
yes X none reported

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major programs: unqualified

Auny audit findings disclosed that are
required to be reported in accordance
with Section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133?

Identification of major programs:
84.010 TitleI

84.389 ARRA -Title 1

84.027 Special Education

84.173 Special Education Preschool

Dollar threshold used to distinguish

between type A and type B programs: $439,125

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Financial Statement Findings

The audit of the financial statemcnts did not disclose significant deficiencies in internal control that would be
considered material weaknesses, and did not disclose fraud, illegal acts, violations of provisions of contracts and grant

34.391
34392
84394
84.410

ves X no

ARRA - Special Education

ARRA - Special Education Preschool
ARRA - State Fiscal Stabilization Fund
Education Jobs Fund

ves X no

agreements, or abuse that were material to those financial staterments.

Federal Awards Findings and Questioned Costs
The audit of federal awards did not disclose significant deficiencies in internal control that would be considered
material weaknesses, and did not disclose instances of noncompliance or abuse that were material to those federal

awards.
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L ,_Q:&_Q Swanhorst & Company LLC

Cernfied Public Accountants

Board of Education
Thompson Schoot District R2-J
Loveland, Colorado

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT ON
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

We haveaudited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate discretely presented component units and remaining fund information of the Thompson School
District R2-J as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements
of the Thompson Schoel District R2-J, and have issued our report thereon dated November 22,201 1. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Thompscn School District R2-)’s management. Our responsibility 1s to
express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financiaf statements of the
New Vision Charter School which represent 84 percent and 67 percent, respectively, of the assets and revenues of
the discretely presented component units. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report
therecn has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to amounts included for the New Vision
Charter School, i1s based sclely upon the report of the cther auditors.

We cenducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 1ssued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, and the provisions of Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on atest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit and the report cf the other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the Thompson School District R2-I7s basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a
required part of the basic financial statements. The information in this schedule has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinicn, is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

November 22, 201 |
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Thompson School District R2-J
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass - Through Grantor CFDA Grant
Program Title Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Education
Passed Through State Department of Education

Title I §4.010 $ 1,686,342

ARRA Tille I 84.389 521,194

Special Education 84.027 2,453,802

ARRA Special Education 84.391 1,725,377

Special Education Preschool 84.173 34,851

ARRA Special Education Preschool 84.392 52,481

Improving Teacher Quality 84.367 492,537

Education Technology 8§4.318 29,442

English Language Acquisition 84.365 49431

Advanced Placement Program 84.330 668

Education Jobs Fund 84.410 2,726,288

ARRA State Fiscal Stabilization Fund 84394 1,046,812
Passed Through State Department of Human Services

Vocational Rehabilitation 84.126 104,341
Passed Through State Community Colleges System:

Career and Technical Education 84.048 91,123
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 11,064,689
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed through State Department of Human Services:

Food Donation 10.555 176,542
Passed Through State Department of Education:

School Breakfast Program 10.553 489,259

National Scheool Lunch Program 10.555 1,739,115

Summer Food Service Program for Children 10.559 118,940
Passed Through State Department of Public Health & Environment:

Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558 16,096
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 2,539,952
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Direct Program

Head Start 93.600 1,008,044

ARRA Head Start 93.708 24,806
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 1,032,850
TOTAL FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE $ 14,637,491
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Thompson School District R2-J
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
June 30, 2011

Note (1) Basic Presentation

The above schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of the
Thompson School District R2-J and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The
information in this schedule of presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular
A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some
amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the
preparation of, the basic financial statements.
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tg’&f\; Swanhorst & Company LLC

Certitied Public Accountanis

Board of Education
Thompson School District R2-J
Loveland, Colorado

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON
AUDITOR’S INTEGRITY REPORT

Wehaveaudited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the agpregate discretely presented component units and remaining fund information of the Thompson School
District R2-J as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements
of the Thompson School District R2-J, and have issued our report thereon dated November22.201 1. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Thompson School District R2-1°s management. Our responsibility is to
express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the
New Vision Charter School which represent 84 percent and 67 percent, respectively, of the assets and revenues of
the discretely presented component units. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report
thereon has been furnished to us, and our optnijon, insofar as it relates to amounts included for the New Vision
Charter School, is based solely upon the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govermmen! Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasenable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the report of the other
auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financtal statements that collectively comprise
the Thompson School District R2-I’s basic financial statements. The accompanying auditor’s integrity report is
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by State of Colorado statutes and is not a required part of
the basic financial statements. The information in this schedule has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to
the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Swattbioid v 4444704447(/-%/

November 22, 2011
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